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(MAALAEA) (C.C. No. 02-97)

22
23 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm going to call the Land Use meeting to
24

order. (Gavel). Land Use Committee meeting of

25

September 16th, 2002. In attendance this morning
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1

where he have Councilmembers Mateo, Kane, Carroll,

2

Johnson, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares. Councilmember

3

Hokama is excused. From the Planning Department we

4

have Colleen Suyama and Brian Miskae. Brian Moto is

5

representing our Corporation Counsel, and we have

6

our Staff, Yvette and David. This morning we

7

have --

8 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's afternoon, Chairman.
9 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Excuse me, this afternoon.
10 COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Close enough.
11 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I tried to say it softly.
12 COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Close enough, and Councilmember
13

Hokama is present as well. We have several items.

14

Before we start, I will point out to you that Items

15

No. LU-30 and LU-34 we're going to defer because the

16

people that were requesting these will not be able

17

to attend today's meeting, so we'll defer Items

18

LU-30 and LU-34.

19 COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
20

ACTION:

DEFER no discussion.

21
22

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .

23
24 CHAIR ARAKAWA: At this time I'm going to -- I'm going to
25

take testimony, but I'm going to take them just
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1

prior to the item, because we have people that want

2

to testify on two items, and our first item up for

3

discussion is LU-32, conditional permit to operate

4

studio at 106 -- Studio 106 Hair Salon in Kula.

5

Fred Peterson, if you could just identify yourself.

6 MR. PETERSON: Yeah. My name's Fred Peterson. I live in
7

Keokea.

8 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can you grab the mike, sir.
9 MR. PETERSON: Oh, I'm sorry. Is that better?
10 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
11 MR. PETERSON: First time. Live in Keokea and once in a
12

while we get down country. I'm testifying on behalf

13

of Joy Kurosawa and her hair and nail salon

14

Upcountry. In my particular case I have been faced

15

with a number of medical problems and I am taking

16

medication, Coumadin and also Plavix as blood

17

thinners, so I don't dare cut my own nails. And Joy

18

has been a very convenient and very knowledgeable

19

manicurist, and another thing is that she'll throw

20

in a haircut for me for free.

21

So basically I'm -- it's convenient. It's --

22

I think her facility there is very unobtrusive.

23

It's -- you don't really even see the neighbors.

24

It's very quiet and I think that it's something that

25

is good for us older people Upcountry to have this
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5

facility available. Thank you.

2

. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .

3 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions for Fred? Thank you very
4

much, Fred.

5

32

6

CONDITIONAL PERMIT TO OPERATE STUDIO 106 HAIR
SALON (KULA) (C.C. No. 02-163)

7 CHAIR ARAKAWA: For Item 32 we have the representative for
8

this Studio 106 Hair Salon for Joy Kurosawa present.

9

Michele Chouteau, you're going to give us a brief

10

presentation on what is being requested.

11 MS. CHOUTEAU: Good afternoon, Chairman Arakawa, Committee
12

members, Administration, and Staff. My name is

13

Michele Chouteau, representing the applicant, Joy

14

Kurosawa, who is here today, along with her parents,

15

who some of you may know, Elaine and Shigeshi, as

16

the folks who sell flowers to many of the offices in

17

the County building. We're here today to ask for

18

your approval of a conditional permit for the

19

operation of Studio 106. We would also like to

20

thank Colleen Suyama, the staff planner for all of

21

her help in processing the application.

22

Joy wishes to operate a small family hair

23

salon in a converted workshop adjacent to her

24

parent's carport on their property up in Kula. It's

25

a two-acre rural lot that Mr. and Mrs. Kurosawa
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1

cultivate flower and vegetable gardens and the

2

property is improved with just the Kurosawa's home

3

and a greenhouse. Here is the location map. It's

4

pretty faint. I'm sorry about that, but the

5

property is on Hapapa Road, which extends mauka from

6

Kekaulike Avenue past the Crater Road turn off.

7

Hapapa Road is a County road, while Kekaulike Avenue

8

is a State highway. The property is about 850 feet

9

up Hapapa Road. It only has one adjacent makai

10

property, which is owned by Joy's aunt and where Joy

11

lives right next door.

12 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And just -- Council members, there is a
13

map that has a little bit better detail in the

14

binder. So if you want to look at that under

15

Exhibit 1 in your binder, there's a better looking

16

map.

17

Go ahead, Michele.

18 MS. CHOUTEAU: Thank you. Studio 106 would offer pretty
19

typical beauty and hair salon services, including

20

makeup for special occasions like proms. Her fees

21

are very reasonable, 15 to $45 for hair services and

22

15 to $40 for nails with a 20 percent discount for

23

senior citizens. Joy has more than 23 years of

24

experience in cosmetology and hair styling and has

25

worked in a variety of salons on Maui.
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7

She wishes to operate her own part-time salon

2

Upcountry for two reasons: One, to have a reliable

3

and flexible work schedule, because she is a single

4

mom with a young daughter, and two, to better serve

5

her Kula clients, many of whom are elderly and have

6

difficulty traveling beyond the immediate area for

7

affordable beauty and hair services.

8

Studio 106 is open by appointment only. Joy

9

is the only employee and only one or two customers

10

are ever present at any given time. She generally

11

serves three to four clients per day. Evening hours

12

are available on an occasional basis, maybe one per

13

month, and never beyond 8:00 o'clock in the evening.

14

She's never received any complaints from her

15

neighbors, some of whom are actually her clients.

16

During the process to date we received 10

17

letters of support, nine of which were from Kula,

18

and 29 people signed a petition in support, and of

19

those 29, ten were seniors and of those 29, 19 were

20

from Kula, Kanaio, or Ulupalakua, five from Makawao

21

and Pukalani. So her client base is truly

22

Upcountry.

23

Here's a

layout of the salon. You can see

24

Hapapa Road along the top, the concrete driveway.

25

This entire area here leading into the carport is
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1

also concrete. Two parking spaces are available in

2

the carport area, and then space for at least three

3

additional cars in the outer area is also available.

4

Again, that's concrete parking. To the right side

5

you can see that's the residence. Then the salon is

6

on the far side of the carport. She has one

7

manicure station and one styling chair. She also

8

sells some of the products that she uses, like

9

shampoo, nail polish --

10 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Michele, hold on a second.
11

Does everybody see where the carports are?

12

Any questions to this point? Because the map is a

13

little bit faint. Okay, no questions.

14

Go ahead, Michele.

15 MS. CHOUTEAU: Okay. She sells some of the products that
16

she uses, but it's a very, very minor part of the

17

business.

18

Discussing the impacts. The proposed use

19

generates virtually no impacts beyond the uses

20

otherwise permitted on the property. As you saw in

21

the site plan, there's ample room for at least five

22

cars, two in the carport and three in the outer

23

area. As you know, two parking spaces are required

24

for residences and a minimum of three are required

25

for commercial use, although in her case she would
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9

rarely even have two clients at the same time.

2

Joy recycles plastic bottles and cardboard

3

packaging material, thus minimizing the impact of

4

solid waste. Regarding water, compared with the

5

active agricultural uses on the property and the

6

full-time residential use, the part-time salon use

7

has a minimal impact. Many services, such as

8

manicures and haircuts, use virtually no water at

9

all. As demonstrated by the support letters and

10

petition, most of Joy's clients live Upcountry, so

11

there's little impact on roadways. There may

12

actually be a positive impact by clients not having

13

to drive to Pukalani or to Central Maui. And

14

lastly, Studio 106 generates General Excise Tax

15

revenue.

16

Looking at the applicable land use

17

regulations, compliance with the Maui County Code

18

Chapter 19.29 provides the regulations for the rural

19

zoning district. Chapter 19.40 provides the

20

regulations for conditional use permits, which are

21

permitted for uses that are similar, related, or

22

compatible to uses that are otherwise permitted in

23

the zone and uses that are not significantly

24

detrimental to the surrounding area and that are in

25

harmony with the surrounding area. And lastly,
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1

19.36 of the Maui County Code is the off-street

2

parking ordinance, and as described she provides the

3

required five parking spaces.

4

Looking again at land use regulations, Studio

5

106 is also in compliance with the Makawao-Pukalani-

6

Kula Community Plan goals, objectives, and policies

7

relating to economic activity and planning standards

8

for commercial activities in ag and rural areas.

9

The analysis of these are provided in greater detail

10

in Colleen's staff report, but the main theme is to

11

support economic diversification, including new

12

service industries, without compromising the

13

agricultural and rural character.

14

Like the community plan, the general plan has

15

objectives relating to economic activity, supporting

16

diversification, encouraging non-visitor industry

17

employment, as well as employment choices for

18

residents. Another applicable general plan theme

19

relates to health and family, where quality of

20

family life is a building block of community

21

well-being. The operation of Studio 106 allows Joy

22

to be in regular close contact with her parents,

23

while providing her with a flexible job so that she

24

can also spend time with her daughter. Several of

25

the surrounding properties are also owned by family
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members, the Kurosawa, Isobe, and Sakuma families.

2

It used to be one intact parcel owned by Joy's

3

grandfather and was subdivided over the generations

4

to pass along ownership. It is very important to

5

this family to be able to stay on their land and

6

generate income beyond their small scale

7

agricultural ventures.

8
9

In compliance with the regulation of the
State rural districts as provided by Chapter 205

10

Hawaii Revised Statutes there are five requirements

11

for allowing other uses beyond the uses permitted in

12

the district. The uses that are permitted in the

13

district are generally low density residential,

14

agricultural, public-quasi-public, and, again, the

15

detailed analysis is provided in Colleen's staff

16

report, but the application met these tests, as

17

evidenced by the Planning Commission's approval of

18

the State's special use permit.

19

Lastly, moving on to reasons justifying the

20

request, the operation is compatible with and

21

supports the residential and agricultural uses of

22

the property and surrounding properties. It does

23

not create any discernible negative impacts on the

24

area, and may even have an overall positive impact

25

by reducing traffic. Studio 106 conforms to all
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1

applicable land use policies, including Title 19,

2

the Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community Plan, the

3

general plan, and Chapter 205.

4

The operation of Studio 106 enables the

5

applicant to work on her parent's property, engage

6

in self-employment, and have a flexible work

7

schedule that suits her role as a single mother.

8

The operation also supports the economy in its own

9

small way by generating General Excise Tax revenue.

10

The salon offers desired services to its clients,

11

many of whom are elderly and reside Upcountry, thus

12

enabling them to receive these services without

13

having to drive a greater distance or spend more

14

time away from their homes.

15

Studio 106 allows the applicant to be

16

economically self-sufficient, which helps her family

17

maintain their ownership of their land, supports the

18

family's small scale ag operations, and allows the

19

applicant and her family to continue living on their

20

respective properties.

21

Thank you very much for your time and

22

consideration. We do have one request relating to

23

one of the conditions. That's the condition

24

relating to the certificate of compliance. The

25

condition requires that a certificate of compliance
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1

be obtained within 90 days of the Council's

2

approval. There's only one area where we would need

3

a little bit more time, and that would be to comply

4

with the requirements of the Fire Department. It's

5

very likely that we will have to have sprinklers

6

installed in the salon in order to comply with fire

7

flow requirements, and so we just request a little

8

bit more time to be able to put together the money

9

and get the contractor and have the sprinklers

10

installed. So rather than the 90-day requirement,

11

we would ask for your consideration of a little bit

12

longer, perhaps 180 days. And --

13 CHAIR ARAKAWA: This is Condition No. 6 in the ordinance
14

that's before you.

15 MS. CHOUTEAU: And with that, we'd be happy to answer any
16

questions you may have.

17 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions?
18 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One question, please, Chairman.
19 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.
20 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Ms. Chouteau, since you're
21

representing Ms. Kurosawa this afternoon, would you

22

say her level of business at this time is pretty

23

much close to optimum of what she would be operating

24

or do you foresee the ability to it be doubled?

25 MS. CHOUTEAU: I don't believe -- it's -- it's about where
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she would keep it. She doesn't have any -- any

2

desires to expand or increase hours, certainly not

3

to have an employee or anything like that.

4 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So whatever level of impact at this
5

time is basically what we would consider the optimum

6

impacts?

7 MS. CHOUTEAU: Yes.
8 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
9 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other questions? Then, Council
10

members, are you ready for a recommendation?

11 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.
12 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is the Department -- I'm sorry.
13 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Hold on. Councilman Nishiki.
14 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. You are having an overview
15

given by the Planning Department?

16 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I will ask the Department -- excuse me.
17

I'll have the Department give an overview.

18 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
19 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Colleen.
20 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. I'm sorry.
21 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Councilmember Kane.
22 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Are we done with Michele?
23 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, we're done with Michele.
24 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Maybe she can have a seat, then.
25 CHAIR ARAKAWA: We're done with Michele.
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1 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
2 MS. SUYAMA: The Department's presentation was going to be
3

very brief. We're just -- we have a video that

4

gives you a visual idea of how the property looks

5

like. This is Hapapa Road to the property, and this

6

is looking at the property. That's the house. On

7

the right hand of the driveway is where the workshop

8

is located, and this is the driveway into the

9

property. This gives you a general idea of what the

10

property looks like. It's a rural residential

11

community, and this is just looking at some of the

12

other residences.

13

There's larger, you know, approximately

14

one-acre, two-acre lots in the area, but they are in

15

the rural designated district, which means large

16

scale, you know, residential lots. This is looking

17

down the driveway onto the property, and this is

18

that large concrete area that's used for parking

19

purposes and the house to the right, and this is the

20

garage carport. The workshop is on the left of the

21

property in that small little section, and this is

22

looking inside of the studio. It's a one-chair

23

studio operated by just the -- by the applicant.

24

This is the storage room. And this is just looking

25

at the back of the work room and through the garage.
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1

As you can see, around the property it is in

2

agriculture cultivation. They have like flowers

3

and -- you know, that they're growing on the

4

property itself.

5

As presented by the applicant, the proposed

6

use is like a home occupation use. It doesn't have

7

much impact on the surrounding communities in terms

8

of traffic. It also does not change the residential

9

characteristics of the property in the area. It's a

10

very low-key operation. The only issue with this

11

project was the water or the fire protection. The

12

applicant is working with both the Water Department

13

and the Fire Department to resolve the issue of fire

14

protection, and they do have a viable solution,

15

which is to sprinkler the building, which would meet

16

both code requirements. Other than that, you know,

17

that's the only issue.

18 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Colleen, does the Department have any
19

objection to extending the 90 days to 180 days?

20 MS. SUYAMA: No. We realize that they're going to have to
21

do some improvements to the building and get the

22

necessary permits to do that, so we don't have any

23

objections to 180 days.

24 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Any questions, Council
25

members? Councilmember Nishiki.
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1 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Colleen, the roadway on Hapapa,

2

does that meet County standards?

3 MS. SUYAMA: No. It's a substandard rural roadway. It
4

does not meet current County standards in terms of

5

pavement and road width.

6 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is the width of that roadway
7
8
9

right now?
MS. SUYAMA: I'm not really sure, but just by looking at

it it's just barely enough for two cars to pass.

10 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What -- I read in the
11

applicant's -- some of the statements in here. Does

12

the Planning Department have any idea on whether

13

there are any other special use permits --

14 MS. SUYAMA: I checked -15 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- issued -16 MS. SUYAMA: I checked -17 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- in the vicinity or close to?
18 MS. SUYAMA: No. I checked our records and there are no
19

other special use permits within the area. This is

20

the first.

21 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The ability for the people that
22

drive into that -- it looks like a real narrow drive

23

in and then an area to turn around. Are -- how wide

24

is that driveway?

25 MS. SUYAMA: The driveway is probably about 12 feet wide,
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1

which is enough for a car. It's not like there's a

2

lot of traffic. It's a one customer at a time

3

coming in. When I was there there was very -- I

4

didn't see any cars on the roadway itself, Hapapa

5

Road. It's not difficult to find the roadway from

6

Kekaulike Highway. You know, you come from

7

Kekaulike, there's -- you turn onto Hapapa Road.

8

It's not a long distance to this property. You

9

know, it's about maybe two or three lots away from

10

the intersection.

11 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And there is a turnaround area
12

where cars would not have to back up into --

13 MS. SUYAMA: Right.
14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Hapapa Road.

15 MS. SUYAMA: Right. There's enough area in the property
16

in which you can turn around.

17 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now, I read -- and educate me.
18

Does she now have a special use permit?

19 MS. SUYAMA: She obtained the County -- the State special
20

use permit from the Planning Commission on July 23rd

21

of this year, and as part of getting the County

22

permit she's now in the process with the Council of

23

getting the conditional use permit to operate

24

within --

25 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, she now has a special use
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19

permit?

2 MS. SUYAMA: Yes, she does have a special use permit
3

granted by the commission.

4 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done.
5 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further questions?
6

Councilmember Molina.

7 COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Colleen,
8

just again for clarification, the hours of operation

9

will be 12:00 noon to 8:00 p.m., is that Monday

10

through Friday?

11 MS. SUYAMA: I believe it's Monday through Friday.
12 COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Monday through Friday.
13 MS. SUYAMA: You might want to clarify it with the
14

applicant.

15 COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And no signage also?
16 MS. SUYAMA: No signs.
17 COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
18 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Michele, is that accurate, hours of
19

operation?

20 MS. CHOUTEAU: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Only recently Joy
21

has taken on a part-time job that she does in the

22

morning, so recently she has started taking

23

appointments from 12:00 o'clock on. Prior to that,

24

and she may wish to go back to it, would be to start

25

taking appointments as early as 9:00, but that
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1

was -- I think that the point of the hours of

2

operation starting at 12:00 is more of a recent

3

thing. It isn't something that we would -- we would

4

request that it be beginning at 9:00 a.m.

5 COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
6 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any further questions? So,
7

Michele, we would have to change that to begin at

8

9:00 a.m.? I didn't see any condition on it.

9 MS. CHOUTEAU: Is that in -10 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I didn't see that as a condition.
11 MS. CHOUTEAU: -- the proposed ordinance?
12 CHAIR ARAKAWA: No, I didn't see that as a condition.
13 MS. CHOUTEAU: Oh, I didn't see that as a condition -14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: It was just a statement made. Okay.
15 MS. CHOUTEAU: (Inaudible) in the transmittal.
16 CHAIR ARAKAWA: If no other questions, Council members -17

first, are there any other questions? Councilmember

18

Johnson.

19 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: What is the period of time for
20

which this conditional permit is being applied for

21

and will that coincide with the State permit?

22 COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: The end period?
23 MS. SUYAMA: It's for three years. The conditional permit
24

is requested for three years. We're recommending

25

three years. The way we worded our State special
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1

use permit is that there's a date, but it also

2

coincides with the effective date of the conditional

3

permit, whichever occurs later.

4 CHAIR ARAKAWA: So it will be -- it will work side by
5

side.

6 MS. SUYAMA: They will expire at the same time.
7 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. That was your concern?
8 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, my concern was that if it
9

was going to be sufficient period of time so that

10

whatever cost for the improvements that have to be

11

made can at least be justified by the length of time

12

for which the permit's being requested, so that if

13

you have to spend an extreme amount of capital to

14

put in the sprinkler system, then my concern was

15

that is the period of time for which the permit is

16

going to be granted sufficient to recover the cost

17

of the improvements in order to do business.

18 MS. SUYAMA: Just in response, normally when we recommend
19

conditional permits or even State special use

20

permits, the first recommendation is usually one

21

year, and that's to basically monitor the operation,

22

if there's any complaints or any problems that occur

23

because of the operation. In this case, because we

24

felt that it was a low impact type of use, we had

25

recommended three years, because normally the State
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special use permits, when the commission reviews it,

2

the first extension is usually for three years and

3

then they go on a five-year increment.

4 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to ensure that, you
5

know, there was some way that they could recoup the

6

cost, and so I think with the second go-round of

7

five years that seems reasonable.

8 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Any other questions?
9

If not, Council members, on item -- on Condition

10

No. 6, the Chair is asking is there any objections

11

to changing the 90-day requirement for the

12

certificate of compliance to 180 days?

13 COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: If not, the Chair would recommend that we
15

approve the conditional permit with the changes as

16

stated earlier.

17 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So moved.
18 COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
19 CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved by Councilmember Hokama,
20

seconded by Councilmember Molina. Any discussion?

21

If -- Councilmember Tavares.

22 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Mr. Chairman, thank you.
23

There were some people Upcountry that weren't going

24

to be able to come to today's meeting that have

25

enjoyed the services provided here at this salon and
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they wanted me to pass on the information to

2

everyone that they enjoy the fact that they can just

3

go a short distance from their homes to this studio

4

without coming down to Pukalani, Makawao, or further

5

into Kahului for some services and they wanted to

6

make sure that I supported it.

7

Also, for your information, I did live on

8

Hapapa Road many, many years ago and there is not

9

much traffic there. It's a very quiet area, and I

10

don't think that this business will interfere with

11

operations further up the road. And I think that if

12

people felt it was going to interfere where their

13

enjoyment of their own properties, that they would

14

be coming forward to speak against this particular

15

permit application, but I would ask members to

16

wholeheartedly support this.

17 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any further discussion? If
18

not, all those in favor say "aye."

19 COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
20 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried unanimously.
21

VOTE:

22
23
24
25

ACTION:

AYES:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama,
Johnson, Kane, Mateo, Molina,
Nishiki, Tavares, and Chair Arakawa.
NOES:
None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.:
None.
FIRST READING of proposed bill, as revised.
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1 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Congratulations. The process, now this

2

will be sent to the full Council and we will have

3

two votes at the full Council to approve, but thank

4

you very much.

5

Council members, as I stated earlier, we're

6

going to defer Land Use Item No. 30 and 34, so we

7

will proceed to Land Use Item No. 31, the

8

clarification of affordable housing definitions and

9

consolidation of Maui County Code Chapters 19.09,

10

Zero-Lot Line Residential District, and 19.84,

11

Zero-Lot Line Overlay District.
We have people signed up to testify for this

12
13

item, and if there's anyone else that wants to

14

testify for any other item, please sign up. Our

15

first testifier will be Fred Ruge, followed by Lance

16

Holter.

17

When you come up, Fred, please state your

18

name for the record, just in case I'm mispronouncing

19

it so our Staff -- it is being recorded, so they'll

20

be able to interpret the name much better

21

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .

22 MR. RUGE: Okay. My name is Fred Ruge and I'm 73 years

23

old, so I'm -- I want to speak on behalf of

24

affordable housing. I first came to Hawaii in 1950,

25

and I served in the 25th Tropic Lightning Division
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in Korea, so I've been in and out of Hawaii for a

2

long time.

3

And so I'd like to first of all say that we

4

should define affordable housing. In one word it

5

isn't. There isn't any such thing as affordable

6

housing on Maui. It's too high priced. I know that

7

the average -- we only have two kinds of people that

8

this should affect, and one type of person it should

9

affect is the ball-headed guy like me, and if we

10

don't get affordable housing here, all the young

11

people are going to move back to the mainland. We

12

won't have any young families here to help Maui be

13

the place it's always been.

14

I think the average Social Security check is

15

around -- for the average person, about $800, so I

16

don't think there's anybody on Social Security that

17

can qualify for affordable housing. Then I don't

18

believe that there's anybody on the island that's

19

newly married or has four or five kids or three

20

kids, husband and wife both working, don't qualify

21

for affordable housing. I think the mean average

22

income on Maui families is something like $46,000,

23

so I think that the County should take a good look

24

at what affordable housing really is.

25

And I only have a couple suggestions that you
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might think about on affordable housing, is that one

2

of the most expensive parts of affordable housing is

3

the cost of the land. Okay. I think that you

4

should consider -- when you're considering zoning, I

5

think you should consider that when builders and

6

developers build a new subdivision, that instead of

7

requiring them to build a new home, require them to

8

take the market value of the lots they're selling

9

and maybe take 10 percent of that and put it into a

10

land trust and actually buy vacant land to build

11

affordable housing on, and then you could turn

12

around and give qualified people an affordable

13

housing lot say for one dollar. They would

14

immediately use that lot as their down payment and

15

it would qualify for a home. Very simple procedure.

16

If you even drive around Wailuku or Paia or anywhere

17

around here you'll see a lot of vacant lots right

18

where the areas are already developed. You could

19

put affordable housing on those lots, and there's

20

many ways -- and do this all private so that the

21

government doesn't have to meddle in here and screw

22

things up.

23

I think that you could set it up so that if

24

you had a land trust, just like these land trusts

25

that are buying park land and giving it to the
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1

County, you could set up the same thing. You'd have

2

people from all over the country donating to land

3

trust. You could buy this land. You could -- the

4

people could even design their own homes, build the

5

homes themselves, or have a contractor build it and

6

you wouldn't have to worry about how many units are

7

you going to be put into a subdivision. Is it going

8

to be 20 units affordable or 50 units? You just say

9

there's 20 lots in there. They're all selling for

10

300,000 a lot. 10 percent of every lot goes to

11

affordable housing.

12

And I think one thing you ought to keep in

13

mind is that time is a very important element in

14

this thing. You have to fast track affordable

15

housing. Number one, time is pretty important to

16

old people like me because we don't know how long

17

we're going to be around, and time's pretty

18

important to young people because they don't have

19

the time to build a down payment, and this way if

20

they had a piece of property, they'd automatically

21

qualify because right now the price of the land is

22

probably 50 percent of the price of the house.

23

Thank you very much.

24 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions for Fred? Thank you, Fred.
25

Lance Holter, will be followed by Kelly Arbor.
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1 MR. HOLTER: Hello. I had a handout that I gave you.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: State your name for the record, Lance.

3

MR. HOLTER: Lance Holter.

4 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
5 MR. HOLTER: Yes, thank you. There's two items here on

6

this LU-31. The first one is regarding to clarify

7

affordable housing definitions. The second issue is

8

consolidating R-0 lot line residential with R-0 lot

9

line overlay. I want to cover the first one first.

10

We base our Title 18 affordable housing guidelines

11

on HUD numbers. And if you look on the first page

12

of your handout, you'll see the median income for

13

HUD, which is Housing and Urban Development, which

14

are mainland numbers, you'll see that the median

15

income is 58,300. Now, we've done a human needs

16

assessment and we found that the median income in

17

Maui is $46,400.

18

What that translates into is that 75 percent

19

of the households in Maui earn less than $81,000,

20

which is 140 percent of the HUD number. 72 percent

21

of the households in Maui earn less than 75,000.

22

Now, if we base currently our affordable housing

23

guidelines on the 140 percent of the median, that

24

means we're only looking at this small group right

25

here that actually of the 140 percent median
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represents. This entire group of the population is

2

not represented by our affordable housing

3

guidelines, because what has happened and what's

4

currently happening is a developer only needs to

5

build the 140 percent median house and the rest of

6

the population is forgotten about in their housing

7

project.

8
9

So what we need to do is get more in
relationship to what the true numbers are here on

10

Maui. And the true numbers are the Maui median

11

income is $46,400. Now, I suggest what we do is we

12

scrap altogether the HUD, which is this 58,300,

13

which doesn't truly represent the Maui income and

14

the realities of living on Maui. Because if we do

15

our affordable housing by the HUD numbers, we only

16

have about a thousand people that are going to

17

benefit from the affordable housing guidelines under

18

Title 18.

19

What we need are housing -- housing

20

opportunities for Maui families. Currently there is

21

a contested case, and in the case the Planning

22

Commission ruled that a $271,000 home is considered

23

affordable. A new term was coined. It's called

24

high end affordable housing. Now, if we look at

25

what that high end affordable housing number was,
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1

that's $271,500, 271,500, which would require a

2

$70,000 a year income or would be at 150 percent of

3

the Maui median income, completely out of reach of

4

all of these people of this population. Something

5

like 31,000 Maui families can't afford a home based

6

on these Title 18 guidelines, based on HUD numbers,

7

on the HUD median. It's a crisis, and the County

8

Council has the opportunity to do something really

9

good about this.

10

This is another graph. These were produced

11

by the Statistics Bureau there in Kihei. I think

12

Morgan, from Mr. Arakawa's request, prepared this

13

graph, and here again it shows these same numbers.

14

This is the $81,000 income or the 100 percent of the

15

HUD number. That one small area is what the 140

16

percent income represents in the population. So if

17

a builder comes in, builds 140 percent affordable

18

housing at the median, this entire population is not

19

addressed and their affordable housing needs are not

20

met.

21

Further, we have a large problem with this

22

R-0 lot line overlay, and the reason for this is it

23

is -- in effect it's a change of zoning. You're

24

increasing the density. As an example, a project in

25

our neighborhood, it's zoned for about 15 lots for
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the area. These are 6,000 square foot, R-1 zoned

2

lots. Now, using R-0 overlay, you're allowed to put

3

in 24 lots. What you do is you increase the number

4

of houses by nine, you increase the density, you

5

increase the hardscaping, you increase the number of

6

cars, you increase the number of parking events, you

7

increase the number of cars coming in and out, you

8

increase the runoff and drainage requirements, you

9

increase the hardscaping, you increase pesticides,

10
11

hydrocarbons, and yard runoff into the ocean.
In effect, by increasing this density, you

12

created a change in zoning. And when you create a

13

change in zoning, normal -- the normal, process, as

14

you know, is you come before the County Council, you

15

request a change of zoning. If the neighborhood is

16

against the project or has more than 60 percent of

17

the neighbors within 500 feet, it then requires a

18

super majority on the County Council to pass the

19

change in zoning. Whereas with R-0 lot line

20

overlay, what you have is you have no way for the

21

community to gather input and to have control or

22

community control the growth and zoning in their

23

neighborhood.

24
25

So as an example, in the Paia area we had 98
percent of the neighbors who were against the
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project, 357 people signed a petition which were in

2

the Paia area because they travel through the area,

3

yet this had no affect on the outcome of the

4

decision-making process. Why is this? It's because

5

it's a purely administrative process of decision

6

making. No committee meetings were held in Paia.

7

No County Council meetings were held. No Planning

8

Commission meetings were held. This is not

9

following due process. The community has due

10

process in decision making when it comes to zoning,

11

but the R-0 lot line overlay does not provide for

12

due process and community decision making. The R-0

13

lot line overlay, I suggest, be combined with a

14

regular change of zoning, R-0 lot line, for

15

instance, or some other system whereby you have

16

community control in the discussion.

17

Further, why is R-0 lot line not good

18

legislation? Overlay, I'm sorry, R-0 lot line

19

overlay. Because it's against the general plan.

20

It's against implementation of the general plan.

21

Page 21, implementation, public participation in the

22

continuing planning process is necessary to ensure

23

that right directions are taken and overall

24

objectives are met and all County laws shall be

25

consistent with the intent of the general plan. R-0
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lot line overlay is not consistent with the general

2

plan.

3

What happens when you create substandard

4

streets in the R-0 lot line overlay process is you

5

create streets which the County will not own, the

6

County will have no control over. The County will

7

have no ability to go in and make sure that the

8

management and the maintenance of these roads are

9

done properly. Further, what occurs is the County

10

will have no control over the homeowners association

11

in enforcing the covenants and the restriction in

12

that project. That's left to the people in our

13

community to control the homeowners association when

14

they realize there is not adequate parking and the

15

other events that are going to occur in a project.

16

If you're going to create substandard

17

developments, then you've got to somehow create a

18

reason for creating a substandard development, and

19

if the reason for it is creating housing that Maui's

20

working families can afford, then you've got to use

21

guidelines based on realities of Maui incomes, which

22

are the 46,400 mean. As it is now, it's only become

23

a way for developers to create more houses and to

24

sell them at a market price which does not reflect

25

the ability of a Maui family to own a home. It's
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got to be based on Maui realities and Maui incomes.
If you have any other questions, please let
me know.

4 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Are you done, Lance?
5 MR. HOLTER: Yeah.
6 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any questions? Councilmember
7

Johnson.

8 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Lance, I gather what you're
9

saying, then, is that the zero-lot line and the

10

zero-lot line overlay that we're looking at is not

11

working as it was intended to work?

12 MR. HOLTER: It's not creating affordable housing
13

opportunities as per Title 18. Further, the R-0 lot

14

line overlay as it is currently being used does not

15

have a ten-year provision of being sold at

16

affordable rates. Another problem that I've seen in

17

the R-0 lot line overlay, and I've talked to some

18

developers about this, is that there's no way to

19

enable the sales of these houses to be restricted at

20

the moment to local families, local residents. You

21

have a local resident that lives in this income

22

reality, yet you have a mainland buyer that comes

23

that has their retirement money, they have a large

24

amount of money, and they're buying what affordable

25

housing is available at the expense of the 31,000
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Maui families that earn less than 75,000. So we

2

have two complications. We have the mainland

3

pressure to purchase a home and we have the

4

increasing pressure from Maui families trying to buy

5

a home and we have a -- the two are converging into

6

the crisis that we've been talking about for some

7

time now.

8 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
9 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And just for your information, Council
10

members, the two graphs that are in this, chart 2

11

and this chart, were put together by Morgan Clark

12

out of my office. As long as he did the work, I

13

want to give him some credit for it while he's going

14

to school. Councilmember Nishiki.

15 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question, Lance.
16 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Lance, we have more questions.
17 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right now, being that you have
18

done some homework here, can you give me an idea of

19

what some of these zero-lot line homes are -- what

20

developers have been able to get for them? What are

21

they selling at?

22 MR. HOLTER: Well, I know currently the average -- I saw
23

in

24

house was offered at 248. The rest were offered for

25

273 or higher.

this one particular case I'm involved with one
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1 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So right now in the ordinance -2 MR. HOLTER: We have Michele Chouteau, who could guarantee
3

that, but we don't have the actual DROAs here

4

present, so we don't really know if it's the

5

accurate representation or not, but the numbers that

6

I saw on the DROAs were 273,000.

7 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Zero-lot line?
8 MR. HOLTER: Yeah.
9 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: These developers are asking that
10

much money?

11 MR. HOLTER: Yeah.
12 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And how big are these lots?
13 MR. HOLTER: 4,000 square foot lots with a single car
14

garage and one place to park a car in the driveway

15

with a one-way road, which to get into it even

16

further are using --

17 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Lance.
18 MR. HOLTER: -- flexible design guidelines.
19 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Lance.
20 MR. HOLTER: Yeah. I'm sorry.
21 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm going to ask Wayne to ask the
22

questions and you answer his questions. Wayne.

23 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So the low end is 248,000. The
24

high end is 273.

25 MR. HOLTER: And it's higher than that. It's 298, I
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think.

2 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right, and the zero-lot line
3

ordinance that we have now does not have any control

4

over what developers are selling these to?

5 MR. HOLTER: The only control they have is the 140 percent
6

of the HUD median, which means it would be a house

7

designed for a family that made 81,000, or the price

8

of the house, if you look on your sheet, at 140

9

percent, based on Alice Lee's guideline figures in

10

her February 21st report --

11 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
12 MR. HOLTER: -- $317,000. So a developer could come in
13

and say I'm providing 140 percent affordable housing

14

and sell them at $317,000 and call them affordable

15

according to Title 18.

16 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right, okay.
17

MR. HOLTER: High end affordable, according to

18 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's what it is. I guess my
19

concern is now at, say, let's use the round figure

20

of $250,000. Someone comes in and puts down 20

21

percent or 50,000, which is quite a bit. Let's say

22

10 percent, which is 25,000, and I don't know how

23

many people accept 10 percent of a $250,000 home.

24

Do you have any idea what that monthly payment would

25

be based on the balance of, I don't know, 225?
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1 MR. HOLTER: A $225,000 mortgage, I believe the payment
2

would be somewhere around 1,500 a month, $1,500 a

3

month for 225, probably a little higher.

4 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
5 MR. HOLTER: I have a mortgage, 220,000, and I'm paying -6

that's about 1,600, yeah.

7 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
8 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further questions? If not,
9

thank you, Lance. Kelly Arbor, to be followed by

10

Moana Andersen. Is there anybody else that wants to

11

testify? If so, please come up and fill in the

12

forms.

13 MS. ARBOR: Thank you for this opportunity to testify
14

before you today. I was noticing in today's

15

Honolulu Advertiser's voter guide that in the Maui

16

County Council races no fewer than 10 candidates,

17

mostly non-incumbents, cited affordable housing as

18

one of the major issues in this campaign. I've seen

19

housing prices sky rocket during my 22 years that

20

I've lived on Maui. Recently I had the opportunity

21

to visit South Carolina and Georgia, which have some

22

semi-tropical islands along the coast, some

23

beautiful shoreline, and some lake front properties.

24

You can buy, in many instances -- just a little bit

25

inland houses for $110,000 are quite common. There
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are also very expensive houses. Downtown Charleston

2

you can pay over a million and a half dollars for a

3

house, but there's a wide range, and I think it's

4

really important that we look at providing a wide

5

range, that you can have houses from $60,000 all the

6

way to a million and a half and then you can support

7

many different income levels in your community and

8

create stability in the communities.

9

Addressing the zero-lot line question, it

10

really does concern me that the overlay district

11

makes reference to the HUD guidelines. I'm not

12

sure, and maybe somebody from the Administration can

13

really address this question, how the HUD

14

guideline -- the median income is set at 58,300 and

15

yet the figure that our housing assessment is using

16

is 46,400. I've asked this question of many people

17

and I've never really gotten a good response on how

18

these figures vary so much. But I believe that the

19

difference for somebody, you know, in terms of what

20

an affordable house is, let's just look at a median

21

income, is somewhere around $50,000 difference in

22

what someone can afford at one range versus the

23

other. So it's a really serious issue. And if, you

24

know, the inclination is to keep the zero-lot line

25

overlay, I would strongly recommend that the
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reference to the affordable housing in Title 18 be

2

deleted and replaced with wording that just refers

3

perhaps to the housing needs or creates a new

4

definition.

5

Also, I think the 140 percent, using either

6

standard, is very high for the zero-lot line. I

7

would suggest putting a limit of 120 percent and

8

requiring a certain percentage below the 100 percent

9

of median. I believe that was the intent. If you

10

are going to create more impacts in a neighborhood,

11

that you ensure that a good majority of your

12

population or the people in the median range have a

13

chance at this housing.

14

And also I think we really need to look at

15

well designed apartment complexes as well. While

16

Lance was testifying about the hardscaping, it

17

occurred to me that well designed apartment

18

complexes can have a smaller footprint than zero-lot

19

line, and if it's well designed, you can have

20

playgrounds, you can have adequate parking, and so

21

forth and it's not so much of a living in a really

22

small lot situation. Sometimes you can create a

23

large amount of open space in a well designed

24

apartment complex. So I think we do need to look at

25

ways to encourage that. So beyond the zero-lot line
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measures, I think affordable housing really ought to

2

address apartments as starter homes as well. So

3

thank you very much.

4
5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Kelly, you want to state your name for the

record.

6 MS. ARBOR: I'm sorry. My name is Kelly Arbor.
7 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any questions for Kelly? If
8

not, thank you, Kelly.

9 MS. ARBOR: Thank you.
10 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Moana Andersen, followed by Michele
11

Chouteau.

12 MS. ANDERSEN: Hi. Moana Andersen. I'm a real estate
13

broker, and seven years ago I think, Wayne, you were

14

on the Council and were you, Charmaine, seven years

15

ago? When being interviewed for the Planning

16

Commission they asked about housing, and I remember

17

saying, who told the County that great housing is a

18

two bedroom, one and a half bath -- Iao Parkside was

19

not built at the time -- Kihei Villages or Keonekai?

20

And at the time that was the frame of mind of what

21

the developers were going to bring out and do, but

22

it's time that the County put their heads together

23

with the public and with those who have the

24

understanding of what creative affordable housing

25

could look like, because there isn't any here.
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I'm not here to plug or unplug any

1
2

subdivision but to say I'm happy to sit on any

3

committee or to help. I pulled up on the computer

4

the other day houses in Haiku under 300,000. I had

5

the only active listing under 250. It's barely 600

6

square feet on a much unusable parcel. It's not

7

suitable enough for a family. I get so many calls

8

on this one property. I could have sold 500

9

affordable things even way above the affordable

10
11

range.
So my beef isn't with what is -- what is

12

market. Believe me, market homes are not affordable

13

housing, and the market can change. So what is 280

14

or 350 today could be 325 next year. There's been a

15

high push as the stock market also occurred, but

16

things that go up, inevitably come down, but they

17

don't go like this, like that. They go, they go,

18

and they follow a curve. They follow a mathematical

19

curve, which means that the entrance level -- when I

20

entered real estate 18 years ago, the entrance level

21

for a home was about 105,000, and then maybe, I

22

don't know, seven, eight years ago, I'm just

23

whipping this off the top of my head, at some point

24

it was 200. Then it went to about 250, and probably

25

good median entry level is about 280, wouldn't you
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2

say?
The problem is that at a $50,000 income we

3

are missing out on providing work force housing for

4

our people. This is what they call it on the

5

mainland, work force housing. I hope to sit on the

6

National Association of Realtors Housing Needs

7

Committee and a president for our association, which

8

is the largest association in the United States, the

9

upcoming president -- really, we have a national

10

problem. It is not just Maui, but we have very high

11

bills here and we have -- we ship in everything, and

12

what everybody has said is true, if you're retired,

13

if you're -- you know, I could put in a whole new

14

subdivision. At 350 to 375 it will all be sold.

15

But that's not what we're talking about today.

16

We're talking about making it real so that someone

17

could -- shouldn't they be able to purchase

18

something for 175? Well, maybe. I think so.

19

Two, why isn't this place filled with people?

20

Because they're working. They don't have the income

21

to come out here and say help, but they call me

22

every week on one home that will not possibly fit

23

their family. I am so discouraged, and maybe other

24

people don't get discouraged because they sell them

25

other things. I find it discouraging that we cannot
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provide housing for nurses. And this is a

2

nationwide problem, by the way. We can't provide

3

housing for regular people. We are all pretty

4

regular. So something needs to be done.

5

Just so you know, the demographics of this

6

nation are that the baby boomers are not moving out

7

of their houses that much anymore. Okay. So

8

understand that principle, because our inventory is

9

dropping. Also understand that the next group of

10

people born from 1960 on is the next group of

11

buyers. I've got news for you. Those kids that are

12

born in about 1965, which makes them 30 something,

13

their incomes aren't high enough to be purchasing,

14

not unless they made a killing in Cisco or something

15

before it all dropped, but they don't have --

16

there's no way. So one thing is that we need work

17

force housing with real numbers that work. And

18

those HUD numbers, by the way, which we should not

19

be totally mimicking because we are Hawaii, doesn't

20

include any form of cost of living for Hawaii.

21

Two, you folks and the community should be

22

deciding what it looks like so that we don't have a

23

slew full of projects like Kihei Villages and

24

Keonekai. Why? Because if you remember when those

25

projects came out, 5 percent down, zero percent
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down, why don't you call up and find out how many of

2

them went belly up, how many of them have

3

foreclosed. Before Parkside was even sold out they

4

were foreclosing. These are VA and FHA eligible.

5

So what is wrong with the picture? The

6

picture is that as a community, maybe it doesn't

7

work. You see, because it's okay if you're a couple

8

moving into this 700 feet with one baby and one

9

bath, but by the time your second baby comes and the

10

baby gets bigger and needs toys and things to play

11

with, there is no room on that second floor unit.

12

Then you build no equity because by the time -- the

13

prices had all dropped and plummeted to $70,000 and

14

they had paid 130,000. They didn't build one cent

15

of equity with the zero percent that they put down.

16

That's really what I call bad planning.

17

And I mentioned this before I sat on the

18

Planning Commission, please, Council members, talk

19

amongst yourselves and the community, what should it

20

look like? We can actually -- we absolutely, as

21

Kelly said, should have a variety of housing that

22

should run anywhere from 100,000 to 20 million as

23

far as I'm concerned, and that's what makes a

24

balanced community. I got laughed at royally when I

25

testified on this at Wailea 670, you know, not that
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1

anybody cares about infrastructure, you know, the

2

big lousy word, but, hello, you know, when I

3

mentioned, oh, somebody should be able to buy

4

something for 88,000 and I was completely laughed

5

at, but, you know, I don't laugh when people call me

6

that are just regular people and I have nothing to

7

sell them. I wouldn't even care if I made a

8

commission on it. I would just like to find them

9

something, just find them something that their

10
11

family could live in.
Because the rates are so low right now, you

12

know, hovering 6 and 7 percent, they should be able

13

to have home ownership, which is the best thing you

14

can have in the United States of America. They

15

should be able to have that and build some equity.

16

It's part of what makes this country so incredibly

17

great, and if you don't know that, you need to go to

18

other countries and take a look at what deeds and

19

property rights are, and typically the countries

20

that do not have great property rights don't have a

21

lot of freedoms.

22

The County needs to take a look at where

23

these provision of lands are going to come from.

24

Either you the County needs to buy them, you need to

25

work with developers and get them on a fast track

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

47

LU 9/16/02

1

system, and I don't mean market homes. I mean

2

affordable homes, and affordable housing projects

3

should be able to fast track it and not have to

4

spend five years at the Planning Commission, four

5

years at Water, you know, eight years and then a

6

$6,600 water meter. Cut the water meter into

7

one-fifth of that. I mean, move it on if it's

8

affordable.

9 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Moana, can you try and -10 MS. ANDERSEN: I'll wrap it right now.
11 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.
12 MS. ANDERSEN: You need to work with the large land
13

holders. We all do. I'm more than happy to sit

14

with anybody to brainstorm what we can do to provide

15

real, true, affordable housing, and once again,

16

market prices are not affordable. Anyway, I thank

17

you for your time and just hope if you have

18

meetings, you know, if there's a way -- I know at

19

the Realtors Association of Maui this next year

20

we're really -- we'd really like to be more active

21

politically and also really try to be able to hash

22

through some of this to be helpful, and so I hope

23

that you can, you know, call if you need any

24

assistance, just to sit down, and if there's a way

25

that we can work this, I'd love to see more of our
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folks here have a chance at having homes. Thank

2

you.

3 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions? Wayne.
4 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
5 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Moana.
6 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Moana, it's been a long time, and
7

we miss your fresh breath of air. I think that

8

you're probably right when I hear you say today that

9

the cheapest, least expensive single-family house is

10

now selling for $300,000. When we looked at what we

11

gave with R-1, we thought that was going to address

12

what developers were going to sell homes at. We

13

thought that this was going to give them the impetus

14

to build smaller lots, using less land, and thereby

15

giving the local buyer a break. You can see by the

16

testimony today of what these developers are selling

17

at -- I think what you just stated is they're going

18

for the biggest bang for what they can get because

19

that's what the market is willing to pay.

20

If you were sitting where the nine of us sit

21

today, knowing that -- and there's not one answer

22

that's going to create this, but obviously we don't

23

have a string of developers that want to really help

24

people of Maui County, so maybe government's got to

25

do it now, and you mentioned a myriad of things that

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

LU 9/16/02

49

we could do, fast track or whatever. Do you believe

1

2

also when we do R-1 giving the developer a break,

3

because we don't have any type of control as to what

4

that developer can sell that, that we should put

5

down a price based on a price that -- to be

6

delivered and would developers then not want to

7

build these homes if they were confined to one

8

price?

9 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Would you like to give her a chance to
10

answer? Moana.

11 MS. ANDERSEN: Well, if it's market, you know, if you do
12

R-1, if it's market, the market will take care of

13

itself because that's the beauty of the market,

14

where there is something available if someone's

15

going to pay for it, but that makes it -- but

16

affordable housing is very different, because we see

17

that we have a huge demand with absolutely no

18

supply. So I think that what needs to be looked at

19

absolutely would be anything that falls under the

20

category that you folks want to make into affordable

21

housing. Whatever that is. However you want to

22

deal with Title 18 or whatever you find to be fair

23

with coming to income and what they can purchase.

24

I think that you can't necessarily just price

25

it, but I think we could say -- if it was affordable
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housing, you could say, yeah, the limits are going

2

to be here, because those other projects weren't --

3

those weren't -- we haven't really had -- if we

4

have, I've missed them, and if they were apartments,

5

they weren't well designed, which is opposite of

6

what -- you know, Kelly made a very good point, you

7

can actually have well designed, but we really don't

8

know how to do well designed. We're afraid of

9

telling people that we should have design for their

10

homes or for communities, you know, that we really

11

do need a park bigger than this space here, kids

12

really do need a place to ride their bike.

13

So I think you can place, of course, limits

14

when you're doing affordable housing. I can't tell

15

you what it should be or what -- because it's going

16

to change. All those things change. People's

17

incomes change, not that radically here on Maui, not

18

like you're going to see this huge rising income,

19

but as for most developments, no, the market is

20

going to bear that on its own, but for affordable

21

housing, you really do have to look at perhaps --

22

and I'm not certain the Planning Commission totally

23

understood that on the other issue. I'm not here to

24

testify on that, but market -- I think people

25

believe that, well, if there's someone to buy it,
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1

that's great, but it's not all great because we

2

all -- I'm imagining everybody sitting here should

3

have five or ten people in your family or your

4

neighbors who can't get a place.

5

And so I'm sure that you can come up with

6

guidelines that are income related and developers

7

would consider it if the County made it more

8

appealing for a developer. I think we need to do

9

that. Right now most of the developments that have

10

come through the Council and the Planning Commission

11

of course have not been affordable but -- wouldn't

12

you say? They've mostly been -- you know, so they

13

can go through, they can take as long as they want,

14

but if you're coming down to affordable, eventually

15

that affordable house will become unaffordable

16

again. You realize that, don't you? That's part of

17

the beauty of home ownership, that at some point

18

that house that was affordable becomes out of reach

19

again, but we have a responsibility corporately. I

20

don't have all the answers just to say that if we

21

could recognize it.

22

On Friday I'm going to be installed as the

23

president for the Realtors Association, and I just

24

really wish -- I mean, you know, whether people like

25

Lance or not is really irrelevant. I'm glad he's

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

LU 9/16/02

52

1

here to testify, as a Realtor. You know, it's like

2

I would like to see our community be balanced, great

3

wealth, no wealth all working together, and I think

4

it can be done. I think there needs to be a lot of

5

talking that goes on, though, especially, you know,

6

after the election.

7 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Charmaine.
8 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Moana, I've got one more question,
9

just because you --

10 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Wayne, Wayne -11 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- you've seen the market.
12 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Let him finish.
13 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Go ahead, finish.
14 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, you talk about a
15

beautiful community. Right now do you see this

16

community where we have very few single-family

17

owners and -- homeowners and a lot of us that are --

18

and the numbers are greatly increasing of those of

19

us that can't afford? Is that what is occurring

20

now?

21 MS. ANDERSEN: Well, there's definitely more people
22

that -- I think more people can afford now because

23

the rates are so low, but we have nothing to sell

24

them. That's what's really sad. Now more people

25

can afford than ever, and the programs are from, you
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know, zero percent down. You can actually -- more

2

people can afford to own something. We just have

3

nothing to sell them, and so my encouragement to the

4

County from the Planning Department to the Council

5

to, you know, the Mayor's Office would be to really

6

massage and lomi lomi it so that we have a truly

7

balanced community, and this is really going to mean

8

taking some stances on infrastructure, you know.

9

So anyway, I think I speak for a lot of

10

people who would like to have -- and sometimes I

11

feel very humbled because I feel like I have much

12

and can't help. So we ask for your humble help, and

13

if you ever want a voice to brainstorm, thank you.

14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wait, hold on, Moana. Charmaine.
15 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Hi, Moana. Don't run away
16

yet. Have you had the opportunity to attend any

17

conferences on the mainland that deal specifically

18

with affordable housing?

19 MS. ANDERSEN: I'm going to this year to sit on the
20

National Housing Needs Committee. I asked at our

21

State level if I could be our representative from

22

Hawaii to sit on that committee, because it's just a

23

national problem right now, and I sat -- I did sit

24

in May in Washington, D.C. with hundreds of other

25

presidents and president-elects for their
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1

associations at round-table sessions, quick 15,

2

20-minute round-table sessions to go over grassroots

3

government and housing and it was just overwhelming,

4

but there are things that can work. So I'm hoping

5

to get a little more creative. I'm going in

6

November.

7 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. We had an opportunity to
8

hear an architect in conjunction with the Maui

9

Economic Development Board's conference not too long

10

ago. There was a session -- a special session just

11

on affordable housing, and he is one of many

12

architects that specialize in affordable housing,

13

and truly affordable, going down, you know, to 80

14

percent of median, et cetera, and how they involved

15

the community for whom they were providing the

16

housing to be part of the design. And when he

17

showed pictures of these various housing projects,

18

you couldn't tell they were an affordable housing

19

project. They looked just like any other market

20

type of project. I mean, the people were, you know,

21

proud and pleased to live there.

22

And I'm hoping that, you know, our Council

23

next year will really take this affordable housing

24

topic, as it's, you know, number one or in the top

25

three focus issues for all of us to work on, because

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

55

LU 9/16/02

1

it is so critical. Like you say, it's the work

2

force housing we're talking about, and I think

3

people are forgetting that that's what we're about.

4

I mean, it's -- you know, we've got some

5

projects that address homeless and we have ways to

6

deal with some other types of our population, but

7

our work force people are the ones suffering, like

8

you're saying nurses, we hear police, teachers,

9

firemen, I mean, these are your folks, your

10

neighbors, you know, that you hope would be your

11

neighbors are finding difficulty to -- are having

12

difficulty finding affordable housing. I'm very

13

happy to hear that you're going to be the new

14

president coming in and that we have a good partner

15

in your association.

16 MS. ANDERSEN: Yeah, I'd really love it if you folks would
17

call just for any -- any brainstorming, you know,

18

that we could help with. I'd really love that.

19 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Moana.
20 MS. ANDERSEN: Thank you. Appreciate it.
21 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson.
22 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks so much, Moana. I
23

really -- I know you're really busy, but I do

24

appreciate you taking the time to come down here.

25

The question that we're kind of facing -- and
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because I had brought this issue forward on the

2

zero-lot line and the zero-lot line overlay, is that

3

it doesn't appear that it's a tool that's working in

4

a useful way. Because it was originally designed to

5

try to bring in affordable housing so that we could

6

at least maybe put in a few more homes so that those

7

homes would then be able to subsidize at least the

8

profit margin that a developer would be able to

9

realize out of a particular project. Do you have

10

any feeling one way or the other if this is

11

something that's not useful, whether we should

12

retain it, whether we should scrap it and look for

13

something else? Because we do have -- I believe in

14

the 201G we do have that guideline or the fast

15

tracking that you're talking about. We can move

16

projects forward, and it does receive a public

17

review, but, you know, there are certain exemptions.

18

Do you have any feeling one way or the other about

19

which way we should go?

20 MS. ANDERSEN: Well, I think that zero-lot line has its
21

place, and probably when -- I'm not certain, but I

22

think when zero-lot line might have been done was

23

back when Napilihau, which was one of the first

24

zero-lot lines on the west side, so my guess is --

25

you know, and that really did provide, but remember
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that a lot of those houses cannot be sold for ten

2

years. So I'm sure that zero-lot line has its place

3

for affordable and market, but what you have to

4

remember is just keep the affordable affordable.

5

You know, so it could be detached. It could be

6

apartment. It could be a zero-lot line.

7

You know, the fights that happen -- and

8

looking at it is because it's been market and of

9

course all the stresses of us having nothing are

10

overwhelming. So it may have its place, yes, but

11

what you need to determine really are your levels

12

for what is affordable. That's really what you need

13

to do, and then it could take a lot of looks. It

14

doesn't have to look like one thing. And this

15

County has suffered by saying that affordable

16

housing will look like Iao Parkside, Kihei Villages,

17

and Keonekai and a few little exceptions, and that's

18

not good. So good luck.

19 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much.
20 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Moana. Moana, I have a question for you
21

before you leave.

22 MS. ANDERSEN: Last one.
23 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I was one of those members of the Council
24

that --

25 MS. ANDERSEN: Yeah.
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1 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Alice Lee, who's our Director of Housing

2

and Human Concerns, Wayne and I are the three that

3

are left from way back when. What would you

4

consider the range that we should start looking at

5

for affordable housing? 100 percent of median, or

6

what range do you think we should start looking at?

7

MS. ANDERSEN: Well, I think you should -- when you're

8

looking at a $46,000 income and what it takes to

9

qualify for that, certainly 140, that's really high.

10

I'd really have to crank out some numbers and take a

11

good look at it. I think if I spit out a number, I

12

could be wrong.

13 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Why don't you crank out some numbers for
14

me and we'll talk later.

15 MS. ANDERSEN: I just hate to be wrong, but I could be, so
16

let me -- let me think on that and I'll call you,

17

and please call. I'll brainstorm other things

18

later, but if there's anything -- even John at your

19

office. I know you miss me, John. But I'll think

20

about that and get back to you.

21 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much.
22 MS. ANDERSEN: Thank you.
23 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Michele Chouteau, followed by DeGray
24

Vanderbilt.

25 MS. CHOUTEAU: Good afternoon again, Council members. My
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name is Michele Chouteau. I wasn't planning on

2

testifying today, but I did feel compelled to come

3

forward. I'd like to ask that you take the time to

4

read the written testimony submitted this morning by

5

Kent Smith of Smith Development. I'm speaking on

6

his behalf at this time. Briefly, to summarize his

7

testimony, the title of your item today is

8

clarification of affordable housing definitions, and

9

Smith Development would strongly support the

10
11

definitions being clarified.
You have this definition before you, which is

12

affordable housing. The very next definition in

13

Title 19 -- Title 18 is affordable housing project,

14

which is different. It has different criteria. As

15

they apply to the R-0 zero-lot line overlay and the

16

R-0 district, the words are encourage, provide

17

incentives. That's in part how a recent project

18

ended up in a contested case, because it simply was

19

not clear. Was it a mandate? Is it encourage? So

20

in terms of clarification, absolutely, it's

21

definitely needed.

22

As you have heard, this definition uses

23

Federal income data. The County also has income

24

data based on a human needs assessment that's also

25

several years old. I think that everyone would

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

LU 9/16/02

60

1

agree that we need realistic Maui-based figures, and

2

I believe that Alice Lee is expecting to get more

3

realistic Maui figures based on the 2000 census and

4

is expected to get those pretty soon, and perhaps

5

those could be worked into both definitions, not

6

just of affordable housing but also of affordable

7

housing project so the figures are realistic. Smith

8

Development would certainly support the use of

9

realistic, current, Maui-based data.

10

As I mentioned, affordability being --

11

whether it's encouraged or mandate, just make it

12

clear one way or the other so that if someone is

13

trying to do a project using these guidelines, in

14

order to make it affordable, it needs to go through

15

the process quickly. The more time it takes, the

16

more it's going to cost in the long run, and so as

17

long as it's clear whether it's this definition or

18

the definition of affordable housing project, that's

19

going to be beneficial to a developer who tries to

20

undertake such an initiative.

21

Smith Development believes that having the

22

two different R-0 processes is beneficial, one

23

that's approved by the Council and one that's

24

approved administratively. If you feel like the one

25

that's approved administratively isn't working for
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1

some reason or another, then make changes to it so

2

that it does accomplish what you want it to

3

accomplish. Perhaps add the Department of Housing

4

and Human Concerns as one of the approving bodies,

5

rather than just Planning or Public Works. If you

6

want to adjust those numbers so that it stops at 100

7

percent or whatever you feel is appropriate, but

8

having the two processes we believe is beneficial

9

there. They work different ways. They're

10
11

appropriate in different places.
Something that has sort of come up with

12

Moana's testimony. It might be helpful to have a

13

workshop with developers, Realtors, Alice Lee,

14

because if you're going to make changes to these and

15

changes to the R-0, if your goal is to provide truly

16

affordable housing that everybody agrees is truly

17

affordable, you've got to have requirements that

18

developers can follow and actually build them. If

19

you make them too onerous and they're not

20

financially viable, developers aren't going to build

21

them and you haven't accomplished your goal. So it

22

might be helpful to have a workshop with developers

23

as you narrow down -- as you go through your

24

deliberations and narrow down whatever changes you

25

might want to make to make sure that these are
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things that developers -- private developers not

2

using government subsidies or anything like that,

3

that they can still go through. It's clear. It's

4

easy to understand. It's not likely to be

5

contested. It could be done and the units can be

6

built. So essentially it's -- if it's going to take

7

too long or be administratively burdensome, it

8

probably won't be affordable and it probably won't

9

get built.
Just one comment about the Smith Development

10
11

R-0 project that's being built. The prices range

12

from 248,500 to 278,500. Using these guidelines,

13

which are the ones that apply -- if you want to

14

change them, go ahead and change them, but they're

15

the ones that apply today -- all of those prices are

16

within 130 percent of the applicable median income,

17

and several of them are within 120 percent. So,

18

again, you can change those. It's probably

19

appropriate to change them and to use Maui-based

20

statistics, but with what's applicable in that

21

project today, it is well within conformance. Thank

22

you.

23 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions for Michele? Councilmember
24

Nishiki.

25 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now that you stepped forward to
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1

testify, I was just curious. Moana used the

2

terminology work force housing -- and you may not

3

want to represent Mr. Smith on this question, but

4

when you come in and use this so-called R-1 zero-lot

5

line policy, does the developer using so-called --

6

the ability to build on a smaller lot make less on a

7

project than if he were to do a normal project?

8

MS. CHOUTEAU: I wouldn't want to answer for Kent Smith.

9 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Yeah.
10 MS. CHOUTEAU: What I do feel comfortable saying -11 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I was just hoping that -- what we
12

were trying to do is -- excuse me -- is trying to

13

make it so that a developer is going to give the

14

buyer a break, but looking at what is being priced

15

here, I think a lot of us have question marks as to

16

whether the person buying is going to get a break or

17

the developer is going to have greater profits. And

18

I wouldn't like to speculate, but right now it seems

19

like it's being abused. Can you defend from a

20

development standpoint that it is not based on what

21

prices you're selling it at?

22 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne, I'm not going to allow that
23

question.

24 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
25 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I don't think it's a fair question.
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1 MS. CHOUTEAU: If I may say something, and this is the
2

kind of thing I think might be helpful in a workshop

3

format, is for -- if a developer is entering a

4

project completely from the private side, in order

5

to get financing they need to do their proformas and

6

show a return on their investment of a certain

7

percentage in order to get financing from the bank.

8

That's financing to buy the land and a construction

9

loan. And so there is going to be a threshold that

10

has to be demonstrated up front before those loans

11

are obtained.

12

Now, when a project -- what gets built into

13

those in a lot of cases is how long the process is

14

going to take, and if, for example, there's a

15

contested case that prolongs the process for a year

16

or more plus attorney's fees and everything else,

17

that has to get built into your budget up front in

18

order to still be able to obtain your construction

19

loan once the approvals are obtained.

20

So -- I mean, that's -- it doesn't answer

21

your question specifically about this project. I

22

can't answer the question specifically about this

23

project, but if there is some way for, I don't know,

24

the County to partner with the loan so that

25

percentage can come down so that the return can be
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1

less because the loan would be co-guaranteed by the

2

County or something like that -- this is just off

3

the top of my head, but, yeah, to bring what that

4

return is going to be, sure, bring it down if it's

5

going to be guaranteed and you can still get the

6

loan, absolutely.

7 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, if I may -- I was just -8

there was indeed sincerity from this Council by

9

passing this ordinance that we were going to get

10

developers to come down on their prices, and right

11

now I think the question mark is, you know, that end

12

of the bargain, whereby we're giving you a break to

13

build on smaller lot sizes, what are you delivering?

14

And I guess I have yet to hear a developer say,

15

well, you know, I could have made 50,000 but now I'm

16

only making 25,000. I have yet to meet such a

17

person. Thank you.

18 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other questions? Michele, I think I
19

have one question, and you don't have to answer this

20

if you don't want to. You mentioned that when you

21

approach the bank there's a percentage required by

22

the bank for a loan. Can you give me a range of

23

what this return on investment is?

24 MS. CHOUTEAU: Roughly 20 percent.
25 CHAIR ARAKAWA: 20 percent. Okay. Thank you. Thank you
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for testifying.

2

DeGray Vanderbilt. DeGray is our last

3

testifier. If anybody else wishes to testify, sign

4

up now or we will be closing testimony. And,

5

Council members, after DeGray testifies, I'm going

6

to take a ten-minute break.

7 MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of
8

the Land Use Committee. I want to testify first on

9

the affordable housing definitions. As you know --

10 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Please identify yourself first for the
11

record.

12 MR. VANDERBILT: My name is DeGray Vanderbilt, a resident
13

of Kaunakakai, Molokai. And as you know, I've been

14

a constant advocate of the need for affordable

15

housing and have provided a lot of testimony. I've

16

written a view point in The Maui News, and like

17

Moana I too would be glad to volunteer my time to

18

sit on any affordable housing committee that is

19

formed to look into this. And I think there ought

20

to be a citizen's affordable housing committee that

21

is in session all the time, it's a perpetual

22

committee, because there's so many things that

23

change in the market, that it's important to have

24

that.

25

One of the easy ways to get affordable
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housing that can happen right now, if you guys will

2

step up to the plate, is when A&B or any of these

3

other big guys come in and say I want 177 acres of

4

ag land zoned for light industrial so I can make

5

millions and millions of dollars, you say, okay,

6

fine, well, let's balance things out. Let's give

7

100 acres or 50 acres of ag land that you're not

8

using for affordable housing in return for that.

9

Balance, that's what everybody speaks of but

10

nobody adheres to, and with 50 acres or, say, 100

11

acres of ag land, that could translate into 400 --

12

400 10,000 square foot lots. And to me affordable

13

housing isn't some two-bedroom, one-bath on a 4,000

14

foot lot with your garage attached to the next guy's

15

garage. It's a 10,000 square foot, three-bedroom,

16

two-bath house. And there's no reason -- no reason

17

those can't be developed for $135,000 if there's

18

some balance and you don't let these big guys just

19

kick you in the teeth all the time.

20

The cost of materials -- I know there's a lot

21

of nice ways. Councilmember Tavares brought up this

22

architect that really did some beautiful design work

23

on affordable housing, but just the basic

24

three-bedroom, two-bath house coming into Hawaii,

25

the materials is about $62,000. Add in 15,000 for
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1

site work. You don't have to put big major roads

2

and everything through. What are you up to? You're

3

up to 62 -- 75, and a few other costs. And then you

4

have the land to work with, whether it's getting a

5

balance from the big developers or setting up a land

6

trust similar to the initial speaker that was here

7

where if you do a subdivision, certain percentage of

8

total prices goes into a land trust. Because

9

there's all kinds of tax benefit. It's not just a

10

big landowner giving the land. He'll be able to

11

take some major tax benefits too.

12

You had this ag subdivision up here in

13

Wailuku. I mean if 10 or 20 percent of those lots

14

had gone for affordable housing and then there was

15

some kind of variance given where the two acres

16

could be broken down into having -- for lot break or

17

10,000 square foot lot in that subdivision in order

18

to provide affordable housing, that could be done.

19

I think the HUD figures that were talked

20

about can really be changed in rural areas where

21

people need affordable housing, like say on Molokai.

22

As I spoke to you once before, I was shocked when I

23

picked up the Pacific Business News and I noticed

24

that one of the richest -- they had a list of the

25

top 25 richest ZIP codes in the State of Hawaii and
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one of the top 25 was Maunaloa on Molokai. And I

2

said, how could this happen? And then when you look

3

at the statistics, there's all these people here

4

making -- two people working in the family making

5

hardly anything and then you have 20 or 30

6

millionaires that have moved into Kaluakoi Resort

7

and that skews the whole thing. So that makes --

8

they moved in, they got their piece of paradise, but

9

they skewed the figures up so the average working

10

guy can't get anything.
And you have greedy people all over the

11
12

place, and I think we've seen that on Molokai too,

13

where you used to be able to get a home, and Danny

14

knows this, for 350, 400, three-bedroom, two-bath

15

house. Recently we've had some mainland guys come

16

in there and start buying up all the housing in

17

Kaunakakai. Why? Because they go for Section 8 at

18

895. So now the working people that are just

19

getting by and hoping to have a house to rent are

20

priced out of the market even on Molokai, and nobody

21

over here knows that's going. And that's why I

22

think there should be a citizen's affordable housing

23

committee that's always in session that meets

24

regularly to see how the market flows and everything

25

else.
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1

But basically that's my pitch. It can be

2

done immediately and -- by just asking developers

3

to -- don't let them -- I sit in these meetings and

4

they say, oh, it's not financially feasible, but

5

I've never heard this Council ask, well, show us

6

your project costs. How do we know it's feasible?

7

Nobody asks them to come up. Michele mentioned 20

8

percent return on investment. Well, that's fair

9

return on investment, but what else is involved in

10
11

that?
And the other thing, if there is a committee

12

set up, it should not only be, as mentioned earlier,

13

Realtors and developers and people from Alice's

14

group. It's got to be people that are trying to buy

15

homes. Another good person to have on there would

16

be lenders who can tell you what affordable

17

housing -- we talked about a mortgage cost, but

18

that's not all that's affordable. You've got

19

mortgage. You've got property taxes. You've got

20

insurance. If you have a car payment, you have a

21

$100 credit card payment -- there was affordable

22

housing you all just approved over in Lahaina in a

23

condo. They have 175 monthly maintenance fee. That

24

factors into what somebody can afford.

25

So there's a lot of components to this, and I
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1

think you've got a lot of people out there that are

2

willing to sit on these affordable housing

3

committees and try to work through it and -- but

4

you've got to have a few people on that committee

5

that don't have something to gain by the outcome of

6

it and are really looking out for seeing that our

7

working families on Maui can have a decent,

8

affordable home that's not an investment. It's a

9

home for their future and their family's, because if

10

it doesn't happen and you continue to get this

11

spread between the haves and have-nots on Maui, you

12

can kiss this live aloha slogan good-bye because

13

people are getting stressful and frustrated and it's

14

just not right. So hopefully this Council, after

15

the election, can jump right in and with the help of

16

the public really work on getting something for the

17

people. So that's all I have to say on that.

18 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any questions for DeGray?
19

Councilmember Johnson.

20 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, DeGray, in the handout that
21

we received, I believe that's, you know, along with

22

your testimony; is that correct?

23 MR. VANDERBILT: Well, it's not for this. It's on the ag.
24 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, it's on the ag. Okay. All

25

right. Well, then in the question relating to your
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testimony in regard to this particular item, if I'm

2

hearing what you are putting out, it's that the

3

zero -- R-0 lot line overlay, if it was supposed to

4

be an inducement to build more affordable housing,

5

you're saying it's not working?

6 MR. VANDERBILT: Well, I'm saying as far as the zero-lot
7

line, Molokai fought against the zero-lot line, so

8

it doesn't apply to Molokai, the zero-lot line.

9

There was no reason to go to zero-lot line, because

10

we felt that developers would just use that to get

11

more housing on smaller lots, and that's exactly

12

what's happened over here. And they're not

13

affordable. Like in this Paia development, the guy

14

just ended up building nine more market-priced units

15

at 200-something thousand. Sure it's affordable by

16

some guideline that's out of looney toons category,

17

but it's -- it's just -- the zero-lot line, I

18

just -- you know, in San Francisco or New York City,

19

that's fine, but we're a long way from that, I hope,

20

on Maui where we can have a little space, and I

21

think in Lahaina -- for instance, on the way into

22

Lahaina those affordable housing on the right now

23

are appraising at over 300,000 and they're on very

24

tiny lots.

25 CHAIR ARAKAWA: DeGray, I'm going to try and get you back
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to the question.

2 MR. VANDERBILT: Oh, sorry. I tend to do that, don't I?
3 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I know. That's why I'm trying to get you
4

back to it.

5 MR. VANDERBILT: Okay. Well, I'm back. I'm back.
6 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Do you have any other questions, Jo Anne?
7 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. I think you answered it,
8

DeGray, that, you know, it's really not working.

9

Thank you.

10 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any other questions for
11

DeGray?

12 MR. VANDERBILT: I had wanted to talk on the ag. Are we
13

just doing affordable housing right now?

14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm just doing affordable housing right
15

now.

16 MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you.
17 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Anyone else wishes to
18

talk on this topic at this point? If not, I'm going

19

to close testimony for this affordable housing

20

topic.

21
22

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And I'm going to recess this meeting

23

for -- until 25 after 3. Okay. Meeting in recess.

24

(Gavel).

25

RECESS: 3:13 p.m.
RECONVENE: 3:31 p.m.
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2
3
4

31

CLARIFICATION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING
DEFINITIONS AND CONSOLIDATION OF MAUI COUNTY
CODE CHAPTERS 19.09 (ZERO-LOT LINE
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND 19.84 (ZERO-LOT
LINE OVERLAY DISTRICT) (C.C. No. 01-250)

5
6 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Call the Land Use Committee back to order.
7

Council members, at this time I'm going to let

8

Councilmember Johnson, who introduced this topic to

9

the Committee, have a few moments to be able to

10

explain why she wants to introduce this topic and

11

we'll have a little bit of a discussion. I don't

12

expect any decision making to be done today. The

13

idea was to introduce this topic so we could have

14

brief discussion and we'll work from here.

15

Okay, Councilmember Johnson.

16 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Also we had
17

distributed some information that may be helpful and

18

it was just handed out. One of the documents

19

actually goes through information that was extracted

20

from the 1997 Hawaii Housing Policy Study, and it

21

will give a little bit better information as to what

22

the reality of the income of Maui's families are.

23

It did separate it on people that were owning and

24

people that were also renting, and so I can review

25

that later if there are any questions, but mainly it
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just corroborates the testimony that was given, that

2

very few of the people that are wanting to go into

3

homes can really afford to buy them.

4

There's a very small percentage -- maybe 25

5

percent of Maui's population actually can qualify to

6

get into these homes. I believe in West Maui, I

7

think we have something like 60 percent, based on

8

these statistics, that earn over 50,000. You know,

9

I believe that it's -- 50,000 and less would be --

10

would be the earnings of roughly 60 percent of the

11

population. I said that just the opposite. So

12

that's not very good, and there was 20 percent that

13

did not actually respond to that survey.

14

But the point in reviewing the zero -- R-0

15

lot line and the R-0 lot line overlay was mainly

16

that it seems it is not working in a way that is

17

producing the result that had been really -- I guess

18

a previous Council wanted to achieve, and for me, in

19

looking at it, some of the wording, which was also

20

spoken about in testimony, is very ambiguous. It

21

ties everything in basically to HUD guidelines,

22

which are not realistic. It also says we suggest or

23

we recommend or we encourage, but it doesn't really

24

compel in the two sections that are referenced in

25

this particular topic.
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So what I would like to at least have the

2

Committee members consider is what is the purpose of

3

having the R-0 and the R-0 overlay. If it was to

4

achieve affordable housing that was realistically

5

priced for our local families, is it achieving that?

6

If it's not achieving that, can we consolidate in

7

some way those two segments of the ordinance so that

8

they can produce the desired effect, and if it is

9

not going to be able to be enforced, then I believe

10

it may simply be better for us to use other

11

mechanisms, such as 201G, where the fast track

12

affordable housing projects which really have

13

zero-lot line incorporated into many of their -- I

14

guess many of their projects, would that be a more

15

effective way of doing it so it does come before the

16

Council, it does get fast tracked, and then just

17

scrap the zero-lot line if it's not achieving the

18

goal that we wanted.

19

So there's several different ways that we

20

could go, but I really think it's important to have

21

the dialogue, because as Moana Andersen testified,

22

it is really important that we recognize this is not

23

a problem unique to Maui. It is occurring

24

nationwide, but it is exacerbated here in Maui

25

County because we have other factors, such as the
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cost of living, that make it even more difficult for

2

people to qualify for loans and to achieve some kind

3

of incentive for developers to come forward and

4

produce the housing that we so desperately need.

5

So I think that this is the beginning of a

6

dialogue. I know that Mr. Carroll also has this

7

item or a similar item relating to affordable

8

housing guidelines in his Committee which I vice

9

chair, but that's not what we're really looking at

10

in this particular item today. We're looking at

11

this as a tool to produce the kind of results that

12

were desired in achieving affordable housing So

13

that's basically why I brought it forward.

14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: So just for clarification, as I understand
15

it, what you are looking to do is you're looking at

16

the zero-lot line and the zero-lot line overlay and

17

you're actually looking to see whether it's actually

18

achieving what it was intended to achieve, the fact

19

that it was supposed to be bringing down the cost of

20

affordable -- of the lots and thereby making more

21

lots available in an affordable range. And what

22

you're contesting and you're looking at is the

23

actual range in which we're supplying these houses,

24

as to whether that was the achievable range that was

25

envisioned when we passed this legislation; is that
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correct?

2 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, that is, and I think that the
3

dialogue that we have been going through on -- not

4

necessarily in this Committee, you know, meeting but

5

about affordable housing in general is really

6

important, and this is one of the components, but if

7

it's not a functional component or if it's a

8

component which people are really not using for the

9

purpose for which it was intended, then we need to

10

rethink where this is going.

11 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Discussion?
12

Councilmember Nishiki.

13 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I think, Alice, if we may
14

use your expertise, and I hope that this

15

Administration, Mr. Chairman, has looked at how many

16

subdivisions have we had using this concept since

17

the ordinance was passed, and you may not have that

18

information now, but I would think -- in lieu of

19

what Jo Anne is asking, I think we need the proof in

20

the pudding. In other words, how many people and

21

how many homes have been built, what year, at what

22

time, and what did it sell for I think is important.

23

When I see an example that was used today of

24

a zero-lot line, and that was the Paia subdivision,

25

you know, I think we need to see what that developer
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is selling it for and -- you know, we know what we

2

tried to pass it for and the reason was right, to

3

create affordable housing. We didn't specify at

4

what percent, but in lieu of what has been presented

5

to us, it probably missed the target, Alice, and

6

I -- you know, it's just being honest. And so, you

7

know, I don't say that we should scrap it. I say

8

that is there ways in which we can improve it?

9

I know it's not the all in all, but like Jo

10

Anne I am concerned from the fact that we went, oh,

11

we've got a problem here because the lots are too

12

big and developers are saying that, hey, if they

13

have smaller lots, then they can give us cheaper

14

homes. Well, did we get it? And only you may have

15

some of the answers to getting that inventory that

16

we need, Mr. Chairman, and --

17 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilman Nishiki -18 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- seeing what has occurred.
19 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I've asked -- you've asked two questions
20

to this point, and let me make sure that I have

21

these right.

22 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
23 CHAIR ARAKAWA: How many units were constructed since we

24

started the zero-lot line legislation?

25 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
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1 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And what costs were they sold at in
2

relation to affordable housing percentages?

3 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
4 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Alice, please.
5 MS. LEE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
6

Mr. Nishiki, I'm aware of at least three

7

projects that Mr. Smith has done R-0 lot lines and

8

this is the third one, to my knowledge, and there

9

were at least one or two others on the west side.

10

Now, you're absolutely right in that our intention,

11

while we're -- when we established this ordinance a

12

number of years ago was to encourage affordable

13

housing. I think we need to take a look at a couple

14

things. I wouldn't necessarily recommend

15

consolidating the R-0 zoning ordinance and the R-0

16

overlay. The R-0 overlay and the R-0 zoning

17

ordinance are two different things, okay, because if

18

one developer had, oh, a subdivision with --

19

designated R-10, you know, or less than that. What

20

is the next one? R-10.

21

?:

R-1.

22 MS. LEE: R-1, R-2, yeah. Excuse me, not R-10. R-3 is
23

10,000 square feet. R-1, R-2, R-3. So especially

24

the R-2s and the R-3s can have an overlay done on

25

their subdivision, but an R-0 is all -- all, you
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know, 3,000 or 3,500 to 4,000 square foot lots, so

2

these are really two different ordinances

3

completely.

4

The second point I'd like to make is that

5

even with the 201G, and let's say a developer comes

6

before you and wants to do an affordable housing

7

project and they want the project to have 3,500 to

8

4,000 square foot lots, you're still going to need

9

standards to go by, and that's why it's important to

10

maintain and retain the R-0 ordinance, because

11

that's where you have all your standards.

12

Third point I would like to make is that if

13

you are thinking of making changes to the R-0

14

overlay district ordinance, you may want to consider

15

deleting reference to HUD, the HUD standard, and

16

either putting nothing there or specifically

17

referring to the standard developed by the

18

Department of Housing and Human Concerns.

19

The other thing is the R-0 overlay district

20

could be used for market homes as well. It doesn't

21

have to be only affordable. You know, there may be

22

a developer who wants to build a market type of

23

project using the R - 1 -- the R - 0 overlay district or

24

the R-0. So, you know, I think it's kind of

25

important that we continue to give people choices in
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what they develop. If you feel -- and I have to

2

remind you that we're in a very strong real estate

3

market right now that's going to change at some

4

point. To my knowledge, Kent Smith was offering at

5

the North Shore subdivision, his pricing, according

6

to Michele Chouteau, was in the neighborhood of

7

248,000 to 270,000. Wasn't that what she said?

8 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
9 MS. LEE: She could have gone up to -- they could have
10

gone up to 317. That's 140 percent of median

11

income. They could have sold the houses at 317,000.

12

So, you know, in his mind, he's complying, but in

13

maybe everybody else's mind that's too high. So,

14

you know, you need to look at he's following the

15

standard, but is the standard too high?

16

Now, as Councilmember Johnson mentioned, I am

17

waiting for the latest census figures. I've been

18

waiting for the last year. The census was taken in

19

the year 2000 and it's 2002 already and we haven't

20

gotten the results. So we're sort of just guessing

21

our best guess, though, that the median is 46,400.

22

And what we did was we used the information

23

extracted from the human needs survey done in 1999

24

but adjusted it every year, just as HUD adjusts

25

their figure, which today is 58,300. They adjust it
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every year also. But we feel that their

2

calculations are incorrect and they are too high.

3

We won't know until the actual results come in.

4

So these are some of the issues, you know, I

5

hope you take into consideration as you deliberate

6

on what to do with the R-0 overlay and the R-0

7

zoning ordinance.

8 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Continue, Wayne.
9 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, if I may. You know, I just
10

want to go along with some of the things that I

11

think Charmaine has mentioned to us, and I think

12

most of us take it to heart. You know, in this --

13

in Maui we don't want people that think that they're

14

millionaires to create and live in their own

15

communities and then those of us that work in

16

whatever job we do but we work and we work damn hard

17

be -- and say we only earn so much but we're still

18

working, to be put in and say, well, this is the

19

area that we want you to live in and we call it

20

names that I don't even want to repeat.

21

But I think -- Alice, I think when we -- you

22

say it's between 248 and 273, perhaps if we give a

23

developer the ability to put it up at 317, then he

24

should be able to give us also the 215 or the 190 or

25

whatever. What do you think about that? I mean
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Charmaine is saying, you know, let's not create this

2

kind of class thing. I don't know if that's what

3

Charmaine's saying, but, you know, she's saying

4

let's not put us all in that same area. Let's mix

5

it. I mean, come on, me and Riki, we put on our

6

pants the same way. Jo Anne and I, we may not brush

7

our teeth the same way, but you know what I mean.

8

We can live with each other and we don't want to see

9

that, and that's -- isn't that what's occurring

10

right now when you look at if we don't try to make

11

that mix and allow that to occur?

12 MS. LEE: I totally agree with you.
13 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, you know, I hate to say it,
14

but I live in an area that's being like that. I

15

don't like it.

16 MS. LEE: I agree with you, because I would be opposed to
17

any kind of policy that creates a concentration of

18

low income housing. You know, I think we all have

19

learned from that experience and we should be

20

looking at various ways to promote decentralization,

21

deconcentration, and the best kind of mix in a

22

project as possible. Of course you're not going to

23

put a million dollar home next to a 110,000 house.

24 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Understood.
25 MS. LEE: But I'm assuming we're talking about the median
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range of projects, then, you know, you can play

2

with -- you can have a mix, and I think it would be

3

good for the community.

4 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So -5 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne, I'm going -6 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- Mr. Chair.
7 CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- to let somebody else ask questions.
8 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Fine. I'm not done, but go ahead.
9 CHAIR ARAKAWA: We'll come back to you. Councilmember
10

Kane.

11 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Is it
12

possible for us to ask your staff, Mr. Chairman,

13

to -- and I'm asking this because a few comments

14

were made I think by yourself as well as Member

15

Nishiki about you folks know the intent of the

16

ordinances that were -- that were passed, the R-0

17

district as well as the R-0 overlay ordinances. Is

18

it possible to extract out the minutes of the

19

meetings that talked about it, that formulated those

20

ordinances so all of us can be on the same page as

21

to how you folks -- when I say you folks, the folks

22

that were there, including former member -- and I

23

believe Ms. Lee was the Chair at the time -- of the

24

Council when this thing was put into effect, if I'm

25

not mistaken, but can we get that as a doc trans
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once that's extracted out and given so all of us

2

have that available to us?

3 CHAIR ARAKAWA: We can get the minutes of those meetings,
4

I believe. We'll try, anyway, but the very -- the

5

flavor of it I believe is what Councilmember Nishiki

6

is talking about, and basically the intent was to

7

allow developers to have some flexibility in what

8

they were constructing. When you had a total

9

project and there was high end and there was

10

requirement for affordable, there was -- it was a

11

way to try and create more affordable while at the

12

same time allowing a balance of medium and higher

13

income. So we will try and extract those minutes.

14 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah.
15 CHAIR ARAKAWA: But that's the basic idea of it, was to
16

allow the developers to not overly expend on the

17

lower end.

18 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. Again,
19

I'd just -- I would like to get the minutes so I

20

think each of us have the opportunity to read the

21

minutes ourself and I guess try to conclude for

22

ourselves what the intent of the law was.

23

The second request I have, Mr. Chairman, is

24

it seems that it's being described as this -- these

25

as being failures to some extent, and so I think
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it's important for us to also get -- you know, let's

2

validate those perceived conclusions, and I think by

3

way of since these laws came into effect how many

4

projects were there that utilized these, either the

5

district or the overlays, and if we can have -- and

6

I think it's similar to Member Nishiki's request

7

regarding, you know, how many units were done and

8

the cost. So I'm just -- again, I'm just trying to

9

tie it in so we can have all this information in

10

front of us, and I'm hoping prior -- prior to the

11

next time we meet -- and I'm just commenting based

12

on you saying that you're not going to take any

13

action today, but before we take it up again, if we

14

can have at least that information and whatever else

15

information other members feel is important for us

16

to continue this discussion.

17 CHAIR ARAKAWA: The two questions that Councilmember
18

Nishiki asked, how many units were constructed under

19

this ordinance and what the costs were, what they

20

were sold at, the units were sold at, those are the

21

two questions basically you're asking?

22 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, along the same lines. So
23

that's why I made that comment, I think it's the

24

same lines as Mr. Nishiki's questions .

25 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I just wanted to --
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1 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I just want to concur -- if that's

2

the case, I want to concur with Mr. Nishiki's

3

request.

4 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And we shall try and get that information.
5

Councilmember Tavares.

6 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, following up on what
7

Mr. Kane is saying about the minutes where this was

8

discussed, you know, for me it would be all right if

9

the staff would look through the minutes and write

10

us a summary of what occurred, rather than

11

reproducing the minutes for all the meetings. I

12

don't know if that would satisfy Mr. Kane's request

13

or not.

14 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Well, what I'll do is if other
15

members feel it's not important to have those

16

verbatim minutes, then I will make my own request

17

out of my own office for those verbatim minutes, but

18

other than that, for the Committee's sake, if the

19

body feels that summary minutes are fine, then I can

20

go along with that, but, again, I'll make my own

21

request and I'll go dig it up myself.

22 CHAIR ARAKAWA: In -- what is the body's -- would all of
23

you like to have copies of the minutes? Because

24

this was not just one meeting. This is a series of

25

meetings, I believe.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

LU 9/16/02

89

1 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It was a bunch.

2 CHAIR ARAKAWA: So it might be quite a bit of data that we
3

have to get back. If you would prefer, we could do

4

brief summaries, but you'll have to agree that

5

the -- our staff is doing summaries, not verbatim.

6

Your pleasure, verbatim or summary? How many of you

7

want verbatim? How many of you want --

8 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
9 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.
10 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If I may, please.
11 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
12 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Maybe there's a happy medium here
13

we can accomplish for Mr. Kane and Ms. Tavares. It

14

may be in the summarization of certain points of the

15

affordable housing discussion, that the staff would

16

list the section or area that they are paraphrasing,

17

if I could use that term, in the summary, thereby if

18

a specific member is concerned about trying to get a

19

little bit more detailed, accurate information,

20

where that member can go to get that verbatim

21

discussion in review.

22 CHAIR ARAKAWA: We can try and we'll do the best we can,
23

okay, but --

24 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because to summarize it, the staff
25

is going to need to review the documents anyway,
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Chairman.

2 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. We're going to have to review the
3

documents.

4 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So I just offer that.
5 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right, but there may be many parts within
6

the document that the same thing may be discussed,

7

which is why I say we can try. So if it's discussed

8

in 20 different times, you know, we're not going to

9

refer to all 20 different parts or whatever, just so

10

you get an idea. That's why I say we can try, okay,

11

to where it's reasonable.

12 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
13 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Hokama.
14 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And again, for some of us
15

affordable housing is a progression of what at one

16

time was employee housing requirements, if I can

17

recall, and maybe Ms. Lee can make some corrections

18

to my understanding, but in the past -- what the

19

County or the Councils have asked in the past was

20

how to address a project's need to provide employee

21

housing and that eventually it became part of --

22

more of an affordable housing program, and that's

23

why, as I understand the Code on the section under

24

affordable housing, particularly related to the

25

visitor industry or hotel developments and the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

91

LU 9/16/02

1

formula used to equate how many units to what type

2

of -- per one unit for housing to be provided. That

3

was part of my understanding of an employee housing

4

requirement of the past, Chairman. So, again, it

5

depends on how far back does the Council want to go

6

back and review how we've looked at providing

7

housing for our work force.

8 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And again, Councilmember Hokama, we are
9

looking at R-0 lot line and overlays. I'm not going

10

to go through the entire affordable housing package,

11

because we just don't have enough time and the topic

12

within this Committee is very -- is much more

13

specific. So we'll work with that.

14 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, I understand.
15 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Alice.
16 MS. LEE: Mr. Chair, Mr. Hokama, I think what he's driving
17

at is there was a -- there was a formula to

18

determine housing, you know, how many houses to

19

require of a developer, but the employee housing was

20

only for hotel development, because Wayne and I are

21

the oldest people here and we're the ones that go

22

all the way back and we're the ones that can give

23

you some history on it.

24 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, if I -- oh, I'm sorry,
25

Mr. Kane, I believe.
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1 CHAIR ARAKAWA: No, you still have the floor,
2

Councilmember Hokama, then I'll go back to Mr. Kane.

3 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. I just have a
4

question, because this is the topic of our

5

discussion this afternoon. Ms. Lee, if we amend the

6

current chapters, and let's say we delete references

7

to housing and urban development, would that in any

8

way be a deterrence or hinder us from receiving

9

Federal funds for certain type of projects because

10

we've taken away references to HUD in anyway?

11 MS. LEE: No.
12 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
13 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.
14 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: After listening to the discussion,
15

Mr. Chair, I'll -- if there are no objections, I'll

16

withdraw my request for the Committee to go pull up

17

verbatim minutes from this and I'll do it on my

18

own -- out of my own office and not burden this

19

Committee with that work. So -- because, also, if

20

the request is going to be for summary minutes, then

21

that is more work that this Committee has to do, in

22

my opinion, rather than just pulling up those

23

minutes and making them available to us. Actually

24

going through those minutes and then summarizing

25

those minutes is also a lot of effort on staff time
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and resources, which we all know is very short. So

2

I'll do that to satisfy my need to be able to -- how

3

shall I say, to participate in this discussion with

4

meaningful, sound thinking, but right now I don't

5

have that information, so I need a start point and

6

I'll go create that start point for myself. Thank

7

you.

8 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much. What was being asked
9

is a tremendous amount of work, so we'll work --

10

we'll do what we have to do, but if you can do that

11

on your own, it would save us a lot of time and

12

effort.

13 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares.
15 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, based on that
16

too, I'll withdraw my request for the summary. I

17

just thought that it would save us paper if we had a

18

summary instead of going through the many meetings

19

of minutes, but I think that if Mr. Kane is going to

20

get the minutes for himself, anyone else who wants

21

the minutes to go through it, you know, maybe we can

22

have one copy available, but not to have the staff

23

duplicate the copies of all those meetings, because

24

there were quite a few meetings, as I recall.

25 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much. The -- at this point
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1

are there any other questions? Councilmember

2

Nishiki.

3 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Alice, I know you mentioned
4

that the census was done in 2000. It's 2002 and

5

getting into 2003. Do you have any idea when that

6

will become available, number one? Number two,

7

being that Riki asked you about the HUD concerns and

8

now knowing the disparity of close to $12,000 from

9

the HUD 100 percent of median income to ours, could

10

you come up with something as we proceed with

11

looking at this ordinance? Because I definitely

12

feel, and you probably do also, that we've got to

13

use what we are faced with here in Maui County as

14

true figures and then work from there. Do you think

15

that that 46,000 will be higher in the median income

16

of 100 percent?

17 MS. LEE: Higher than what the actual figures turn out to
18

be?

19 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What it is right here now that
20

we're using, 46,400.

21 MS. LEE: That 46,400 was based on a snapshot in 1999, the
22

human needs survey, so we really have to wait for

23

the census figures.

24 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: When do you think that's coming?
25 MS. LEE: Don't know. Been waiting a long time. I
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suspect before the end of the year.

2 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Judging from what you've heard
3

today, do you think that if we gave you that ability

4

to deal with the developers and you're coming in

5

right now with this zero-lot line, what Alice --

6

because in ten years, you know, who knows where

7

we'll be, but do you think that just having

8

Administration deal with the developer and saying

9

now we'll give you the problem and say, Alice, you

10

deal with it, out of the 50 homes, try to get

11

something for us, do you think that's better or do

12

you think that the final approval, which is not here

13

right now, should come with the Council?

14 MS. LEE: Well, if you truly want affordable housing, I
15

would keep it as an administrative process for the

16

overlay district because it's one less step. One

17

less step means not as expensive, having to go

18

through the Council to add like -- in the North

19

Shore's case, six homes, you know, they added six

20

houses for the overlay district.

21 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, what my concern is what that
22

cost is, because the nine of us may come in if it's

23

given to us and say, okay, Mr. Developer, if you can

24

develop those, like you said, in the 315,000 that he

25

could have done, 317, I guess, but we may say, as
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1

much as we're going to give you and change that to a

2

higher median income, we also capture and create

3

some homes in the 100 to 80 percent median income.

4 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Councilmember Nishiki, rather than
5

just speculate in this area, because that's really

6

where this is going, it's a guess at this point and

7

we haven't really had an a lot of discussion --

8 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mine is a policy decision.
9 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And again, we haven't had a whole lot of
10

discussion on this at this point.

11 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
12 CHAIR ARAKAWA: The Council is going to have to decide
13

where we want to go with the policy and what we

14

really want to do in this area. Now, you know, I

15

personally -- I'm not willing at this stage to just

16

give that right away to the Administration, judging

17

from the situation we have on Maui right now where

18

we really are in a very shortage -- a lot of

19

shortage of affordable housing. If we're trying to

20

create a policy, I think we need to look at this and

21

we're looking at the zero-lot line, what we really

22

want to accomplish with that, and I think the

23

Council needs to discuss it before we try to come to

24

a conclusion. Now, we can continue that area of

25

discussion, but it's merely speculation between
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yourself and Alice as to where you're going to go.

2

The Council, again, we're looking for information

3

and trying to decide.

4

As the Chair, when I'm looking at this area,

5

you know, I'm trying to find what the objective of

6

the law is and whether we're going to reach those

7

objectives or not, and looking at the numbers I

8

think that were requested by yourself and

9

Councilmember Kane as to how many projects were

10

actually created under this law and what the cost

11

benefits to the people that receive these housing

12

units actually were will allow a clearer definition

13

of whether the law is really working or not. So I

14

want to wait until we let at least that information

15

to be able to determine what we want to do as a

16

policy.

17

I think at this point what I want to do is I

18

want to sort of wrap this up, because we need to

19

have more information to be able to decide what we

20

want to do, and unless there are any further -- any

21

objections or any further questions, I would like to

22

wrap up. Wayne.

23 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Alice, I guess you, if anybody,
24

would know this also. Do you know of any other

25

ordinance nationwide that we can look at that
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addresses zero-lot line and a better ordinance that

2

we can look at?

3 MS. LEE: We could always get that information for you.
4

The other thing is if you want the Council to have

5

the authority to grant zero lot lines, I would

6

suggest that you keep that HUD standard because you

7

won't have a negotiating -- you won't have room to

8

negotiate, you know. If you're going to use a low

9

standard, there's no reason why a developer would

10

come in for a zero-lot line overlay because you

11

would hold him to the low standard, right? You

12

can't negotiate. So I suggest that if you leave the

13

decision to the Administration, that you lower the

14

standard to the local standard. If you leave -- if

15

you want the decision to be in the hands of the

16

Council, then you need to probably maintain the HUD

17

standard, otherwise you won't have any room to

18

negotiate.

19 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
20 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.
21 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just wanted
22

to find out if Director Min had I any comments, I

23

believe, because he responded to a request from you,

24

Mr. Chair, regarding the clarification. So I just

25

wanted to see if he had any input into this
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discussion prior to wrapping it up.

2 CHAIR ARAKAWA: John, do you have any comments on this
3

area?

4 MR. MIN: Thank you. I think the letter that I sent you
5

in response to some questions is self explanatory.

6

I mean, I'd be happy to participate in any future

7

discussions that you have on this. I was just sort

8

of looking or thinking off the top of my head how

9

many R-0 lot line projects have come through the

10

Department, and, you know, admittedly I've only been

11

in the Department for a shade less than four years,

12

but I can think of maybe about seven projects.

13

There's a couple projects in Kihei, couple projects

14

in West Maui, and I think there's also a project up

15

in Pukalani. As far as the total number of units

16

and the sales price, I don't have that information

17

at this time.

18 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Kane.
19 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and the reason
20

I asked that is specifically on the point that you

21

have in your response letter, Mr. Min, that you did

22

make the comment on the top of the second page, the

23

zero-lot line provisions have not been extensively

24

used but have resulted in the development of lower

25

cost housing, and it just seems that that statement
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is rather contradictory to, how shall I say, the

2

tone of this meeting. It seems like it's being

3

suggested otherwise that what we have before us with

4

respect to the R-0 district and R-0 overlay

5

ordinances, I've been getting from listening to this

6

meeting that it's not working, it's not -- you know,

7

people are abusing it, and yet this comment here is

8

saying the opposite of that. So I guess that's

9

where I wanted you to expound on, but you kind of

10

responded that you don't have that information in

11

front of you for costs.

12 MR. MIN: Yeah, I would rather, you know, research that
13

and provide it to you, but I think that general

14

statement that's in my letter I stand by, and that's

15

just based on my observation of the nature of these

16

kinds of projects. They are lower-priced housing in

17

general.

18 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, and just one final
19

follow-up.

20 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
21 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And it's just to wrap it up.
22

Mr. Min, are you saying with the -- by standing by

23

your statement in here of lower cost housing, I'm

24

taking it within the context of prior to having

25

zero -- R-0 district and R-0 overlay ordinances in
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effect, prior to that, is that your comparison, that

2

before affordable housing, or however you want to

3

reference it, it was higher and because of these

4

it's actually dropped down? Is that the context

5

that we're talking about?

6 MR. MIN: No, actually, I was basing that comment on my
7

observation of the R-0 projects that I'm familiar

8

with. They generally tend to be lower-priced

9

housing. Now, you know, one can argue whether

10

they're affordable by the, you know, 120 percent,

11

110 percent median income criteria. You know, I

12

would say that they're higher than that, but they do

13

fall within the definition of affordable-priced

14

housing, which is up to 140 percent of HUD median

15

income. So my comment, again, is based on the

16

observation of these projects only.

17 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank
18

you, Mr. Chair.

19 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And I have one more question that I would
20

like -- when you're looking at this. If there are

21

projects that are combined where the R-0 lot line

22

are part of a larger project to satisfy the

23

affordable housing, could you get the cost of the

24

sales of the larger -- of the larger part of the

25

development in association with the R-0 lot line?
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In other words, if the project were 500 units and 50

2

units were R-0, what the percentage of the cost R-0

3

versus what the rest of the units sold for?

4

Because in doing this ordinance, if I

5

remember, you know, if we're doing a larger project,

6

the idea was to be able to allow for more of these

7

units to be available at the lower cost by cutting

8

the size of the lot and allowing more flexibility to

9

developers to be able to compensate them for the

10

fact that they are putting in affordable housing,

11

and remember the affordable housing is not sold

12

free. They are sold. So it's a question of whether

13

they're market value or the reduction from market

14

value. That's what the public really gains in

15

this -- in these ordinances.

16

So I'm trying to find the -- you know, the

17

real value to the people on Maui if we're looking

18

at -- for instance, right now we're looking at using

19

the HUD numbers, and we're at $300,000, and market

20

value is about $300,000 plus a little bit more or a

21

little bit less for the most part. Where do we gain

22

anything? I want to see the difference in what

23

normal market values are at the same time that we're

24

selling these R-0 lot lines, and I think there needs

25

to be a correlation as to what the real value to the
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community is for allowing the ability to have

2

smaller lots, to allow some of the abilities to have

3

substandard roadways or whatever -- whatever the

4

benefits that are being kicked into the component

5

for the ability to create these affordable housing

6

units, and I say that in quotes. Okay. Any other

7

questions? Councilmember Mateo.

8 COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Affordable
9

housing, we've been talking in circles. We don't

10

even know the percentage of home occupancy or home

11

ownership for Maui County. I believe in the 2000

12

census it indicated something in the area of 57.4

13

percent of home ownership in Maui County versus 56.5

14

percent on a Statewide basis. That's just as a

15

comment. So insofar as us lagging behind, we're

16

kind of like a little ahead of ourselves. And

17

secondly, I'm still concerned about County

18

government getting involved in the housing business.

19

I really don't think it's County government's role

20

to be responsible for the development of homes.

21 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Nishiki, you had your
22

hand up.

23 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Alice, you know, I don't
24

know at what point we decide whether County

25

government doesn't get involved or does, but we've
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got some ordinances and some of it's working, some

2

of it needs to be improved. I want to bring you up

3

a policy decision that the County may want to

4

undertake, and this Council may want to do it also.

5

What if at a point in giving a certain entity -- as

6

has been stated earlier today in public testimony,

7

we give someone an urban development for light

8

industrial land, and by giving them that they stand

9

to make -- because now it's taken out of agriculture

10

and put into urban, they stand to make millions of

11

dollars from this development.

12

Now, if the County were -- and this is where

13

I think the involvement of County comes into play,

14

and you may give me an idea of your experience. If

15

the County were at that point to say because of this

16

up zoning or whatever in urban, industrial area or

17

whatever we're going to ask you to donate or give

18

the County either land or cash in lieu of land --

19

say we get land. 50 acres. So now the County owns

20

50 acres that we've got because the Council and the

21

Administration decided to give them this in the

22

Planning Commission. We get that 50 acres. How

23

hard would it be for you now to show a concept of

24

what you want built and show many developers this

25

concept of what was built? Could be by developer A
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and say we want this same blueprint on it and then

2

go out to bid. What would you think about that

3

policy that we take now? We go out to bid and let

4

the developers say that this is what you're going to

5

bid on now. Is that good or bad and why not or has

6

it been tried?

7 MS. LEE: Well, we tried it. That's how we got the 12
8

acres at -- right by Skill Village in Paia, and that

9

was as a result of A&B zoning going from ag to

10

industrial. We haven't done it with anybody else,

11

not on commercial development, and one of the

12

reasons why is it's very difficult to determine what

13

calculation you would use. And I did a lot of

14

research on this back in the early '90s, places like

15

Baltimore, Maryland, San Francisco, very few places

16

have come up with exactions based on a commercial

17

development. So -- but, you know, when we exacted

18

the 12 acres, we didn't have a formula. We just

19

asked for 12 acres, and that's how we got it. So

20

that is -- that's a policy and that's in -- quite

21

within the purview of the Council.

22 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
23 MS. LEE: And you can decide whatever you want to ask for
24

in return for zoning.

25 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Who built the project? Was it put
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out to bid or did we do it?

2 MS. LEE: We haven't built it yet.
3 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, okay.
4 MS. LEE: And one of the reasons why we haven't built it
5

yet is because I personally have strongly

6

discouraged any kind of project that would create

7

more congestion on Baldwin Avenue, and until the

8

bypass goes in, unless a project is going to be for

9

the elderly, it really doesn't make sense to do an

10

affordable right now at this time at that location.

11 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
12 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina.
13 COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, if I could
14

elicit comments from either Mr. Min or Ms. Lee. It

15

was mentioned earlier that the high cost of land is

16

an obstacle toward affordable housing. Can I get

17

your comments as far as the permit and approval

18

process? Is that also a major obstacle, and what

19

can we do about it or any suggested improvements?

20 MR. MIN: Depending on who you talk to, the permit process
21

is either a hindrance or a benefit to the community.

22

There's no question that it takes time. There's no

23

question that most of the major permits that come

24

before our Department that require public hearings

25

are involved in terms of the submittal requirements
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and other work that goes into preparing those

2

applications. They're expensive. Okay. The

3

process may take at a minimum from the day that an

4

application is filed to a public hearing date four

5

to five months minimum. If that project is also

6

subject to review before this Council, that's an

7

additional period of time.

8

Time is money to business, and I think this

9

is a major issue that we try to wrestle with in the

10

kind of work that we do, mainly the regulatory area.

11

The process is also unpredictable. We do get

12

petitions to intervene, and those proceedings take

13

time to -- you know, there's a process involved in

14

that, and that may add another six months or longer

15

to the normal process. So, you know, from a

16

regulatory standpoint, you know, there are obviously

17

issues there.

18

There is the 201G process, which this Council

19

is the authority on, which is on paper an expedited

20

process. It's 45 days from the date of submittal.

21

The approval is a legislative approval and it allows

22

the Council to establish specific development

23

standards for the project, it allows for certain

24

fees to be waived, and it allows for exceptions to

25

be granted, which under normal circumstances would
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be rather involved if we went through a normal

2

process. In order to -- in order to qualify under

3

that 201G procedure, however, a developer would have

4

to provide -- I don't know if it's 50 percent. 50

5

percent of the units would have to fall within the

6

affordable criteria. Okay. So there is -- you

7

know, they would have to meet that in order to

8

qualify for that procedure.

9

You know, how successful has that procedure

10

been, I think is another valid question. You know,

11

we do have procedures which at least on paper appear

12

to be expedited procedures and provide incentives

13

for developers to use for affordable housing. I

14

think looking at the R-0 overlay -- R-0 overlay

15

district, you know, these are just a few of the

16

zoning tools that we have. And I don't -- I don't

17

think personally that any one of these tools is the

18

solution for affordable housing.

19

And let me give you another example. We have

20

a planned development procedure which was done way

21

back in the 1960s, Napilihau subdivision that I

22

think was referred to earlier. It's an old

23

subdivision developed in the 1970s, was developed as

24

a planned development under that procedure. The

25

Wailea Resort was also developed as a planned
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development. So the different zoning tools that we

2

have can accomplish different things. If we wanted

3

to accomplish affordable housing, it can work in

4

that manner. Okay. On the other hand it can

5

work -- you know, it can provide a tool to

6

accomplish other purposes as well.

7

You know, I know I'm kind of giving you a

8

long-winded answer to your question, but I guess one

9

point I want to make is that I don't think there's

10

any one magic bullet to this as far as a zoning

11

procedure, and I think we really need to look at

12

under the current procedures that we have why or why

13

not are we accomplishing what we hope to accomplish,

14

and I think it goes beyond R-0.

15 COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
16 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? If not, any
17

objections to deferring this item?

18 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
19 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Councilmember Hokama.
20 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If before you ask for deferral I
21

can share a couple things that I would hope maybe we

22

can prepare prior to the next meeting when you bring

23

this back to Committee.

24 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
25 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Since your topic deals with both
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Chapter 2, which is the Administration portion or

2

the policy regarding the topic of affordable

3

housing, as well as Chapter 19, which is zoning, you

4

know, we're dealing with two different types of

5

tools, a policy tool versus a zoning -- not versus,

6

and a zoning tool. I think part of the way the

7

chapters have been written more under the zoning --

8

and as I understand the policies, we've tended to

9

look at projects that deal with sales of the

10
11

property or in fee.
I think possibly one of the objects of

12

approaching affordable housing -- and I believe the

13

County can take a very important role in addressing

14

this issue -- is to look at providing affordable

15

housing on County property that comes under a rental

16

or long-term lease program. Because if the problem

17

as we are dealing with creation of affordable

18

housing and it's a fee program, then of course the

19

person that purchases would like to develop equity,

20

who would like to be able to have that value grow to

21

then maybe buy the second house which may or may not

22

be his dream house or her dream house. But the key

23

is to keep a component of affordable housing

24

available down the road, and if that may be a way of

25

how we utilize the long-term lease program whereby
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the County will still retain ownership of title to a

2

property whereby after a period of time we can still

3

recycle the product to maintain affordable housing

4

on the market, then that may be the way to approach

5

this great concern of ours.

6

So I would ask you if we can look at those

7

options, think of ways that maybe we need to bring

8

in the financial institution as lenders, because

9

they have a great impact upon the price that we

10

eventually ask the consumer to consider, and so I

11

just share that thoughts with you, Chairman, because

12

I know that there's a lot of smart people out there

13

and there's a lot more components that affect

14

affordable housing than just the land and the

15

construction on the land. There's a lot of other

16

cost factors.

17

And I think Mr. Min brought up a very good

18

point. Time adds costs to the per unit outcome at

19

the end. So I would ask you to take that into

20

consideration, and maybe we can prepare to have a

21

more detailed discussion regarding all of the

22

factors as well as the ability of County to use its

23

property to address this concern instead of just

24

private ownership lands. Thank you.

25 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you, Councilmember Hokama.
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You know, that's been what I've been pretty much

2

campaigning on is this affordable housing package,

3

so I definitely am thinking in the line along what

4

you are, and that is long-term ownership so that we

5

make sure that affordable housing is passed down

6

generation to generation, not just one term

7

affordable. So I'm looking at those kinds of

8

packages, and we're not going to do anything in the

9

campaigning issue, but that's basically the -- well,

10

I'll give you the proposals that I've put forth at

11

this point. It's very similar to what you're

12

looking at.

13 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And we'll bring that forward, but
15

remember, we are dealing with the zero-lot line

16

issues, and therefore, I'm going to concentrate our

17

discussion on the zero-lot line issues.

18

Councilmember Carroll in his Committee is dealing

19

with affordable housing, so I'm going to allow him

20

to continue with the zero -- with the affordable

21

housing, but we're very specific in what we're

22

doing. Okay. So with no further objections and no

23

further objections, I'm going to defer this item.

24 COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

25

ACTION:

DEFER.
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1

2
3
4

5

REVISIONS TO "AG BILL" (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT
ZONING ORDINANCE) (C.C. No. 02-95)

19

LAND USE DEFINITIONS (OPEN SPACE ZONING
DISTRICT ORDINANCE) (C.C. No. 02-114)

5
6 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. For the last two items, Council

7

members, we do have one testifier, DeGray

8

Vanderbilt, but I don't see him here. Is there

9

anybody else that wants to testify on the last two

10

items that we have? Oops. I got the wrong one. If

11

not, let's discuss this, these items.

12

Okay, LU-5 and LU-19. As you know, Council

13

members, we agreed on these two items, that we

14

would -- that I would be able to go out with the

15

Council member in each district and try and hold

16

community meetings. They've been successful and

17

unsuccessful, depending on the districts that we've

18

been going to. We do have a break down.

19
20
21

And, David, did you pass this break down to
everyone or am I the only one to have it?
I'll give you an idea. We'll pass this

22

around. The question being at this point, you know,

23

we've had a minimum of two members of the public

24

that participated in the Wailuku and the Kihei area.

25

We've had as many as 20 members in the Hana area or
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community. Now, the first go-round, basically what

2

I was charged to do, and those of you that attended

3

the meetings will verify this, all we did was pass

4

out information and have discussion. It was not to

5

receive information. The second round is to try and

6

get information back from members of the community.

7

The numbers -- at this point we may be

8

getting better numbers as people become more

9

interested in it, but if past experience has any

10

indication, it's going to be pretty close to what we

11

have right now, I would anticipate. The question

12

was -- when we discussed this was whether or not we

13

wanted to bring all the Council members out to each

14

community to be able to discuss these issues with

15

those members that are present or if you would

16

prefer the Chair to do it in the similar manner in

17

which we did it and then bring those results back to

18

the Committee to be able to discuss it as a group

19

with all the recommendations from the different

20

areas.

21

At this point we have no recommendations from

22

the different areas because I specifically did not

23

want recommendations from members of the community.

24

All we were doing was discussing and handing out

25

information, explaining that. Any comments? How
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1

would you like to proceed on these issues?

2

Councilmember Johnson.

3 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, just from I guess a
4

pragmatic standpoint, I'm looking at if we go out to

5

full on hearings where all of us participate, how

6

much time do we really have left, you know, to do

7

that and to discharge our duties and come out with

8

some meaningful recommendation to the full Council?

9

I have gotten some feedback from individuals who did

10

attend those various meetings and they were -- they

11

were expressing concerns about the length of time

12

that it may take.

13

Because original concern in bringing this

14

forward and looking at the bill is that if there are

15

developments going on, if we have all of these

16

subdivisions pending approval under the ag bill and

17

they're getting final subdivision approval, it will

18

be a moot point, because by the time all this takes

19

place, these subdivisions will already have gone

20

through final approval and then any result that may

21

come out of those meetings, however well intended,

22

is not going to address the core issues of fact that

23

there is no environmental review going on in any of

24

this massive urbanization of agricultural land. And

25

I'm speaking specifically about the ag bill, not the
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open space, although there were comments on that.

2

So my concern would be are we going to run

3

out of time before we're able to achieve anything

4

meaningful that will address the real concerns of

5

the community? And if we're not going to have

6

enough time to do that, then I'm for whatever would

7

expedite the process so that we can really get

8

something meaningful and a recommendation on to the

9

full Council from this Committee as to how we can

10

stem this tide of urbanization of agricultural land

11

with no environmental impact statement and with no

12

essential review of a lot of these impacts that are

13

taking place.

14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah, and understand the process,
15

Councilmember Johnson. In doing this, when we're

16

looking at the legislation -- Land Use legislation,

17

they take a long time to develop, and what generally

18

happens -- and we'll take the ag bill to the point

19

where it is right now. It took about three years to

20

get to that point. Now, it goes through several

21

Councils in the process. Not one person starting it

22

off is going to be able to complete it in that one

23

term. If we're fortunate enough to have the person

24

who is in charge of it being able to be on the

25

Council and chairing the same Committee two or three
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terms, then we can have real consistency.
In doing the ag bill, when we first did it,

3

we realized that we could take it only to a certain

4

point, then the next Council had to pick it up and

5

move with it. Unfortunately, the next Council did

6

not pick it up and move with it. If they had,

7

perhaps we would have gotten to the point where we

8

could have taken out some of the concerns that we

9

have right now in what you're talking about, but

10

we're talking about long-term legislation, not on

11

specific projects.

12

If you're thinking that these legislations

13

are going to take care of a specific project, then

14

that is not what is the intent. The intent is to

15

look at what the long-term benefits of the ag bill

16

or the rural bill or the open space are. That has

17

to be a long process, and what I am doing is I am

18

trying to work with what is there to be able to

19

create long-term legislation. We will not be able

20

to complete it in this Council term, but we never

21

can complete these things in a Council term by the

22

nature of the process in which we have to go.

23

The Council has to meet -- or the Committee

24

has to meet, it has to go to Planning Commissions,

25

they have to come back, come back for Council
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review, and work it out. You know, that process

2

alone takes an inordinate amount of time, but if we

3

don't work on it from Council to Council to Council

4

and pass this work on, then nothing ever gets done,

5

which is why to this point most of this legislation

6

which should have been done in the '70s, '60s and

7

'70s has not been done. And if we continue to say,

8

well, you know, you're not going to be able to

9

complete what you start, so therefore we're not

10

going to do it or we're looking at specific

11

projects, we never get to the point of having

12

meaningful legislation. So that's the process that

13

we're in right now.

14

And again, when we did the ag bill, we knew

15

it was not complete, but that Council could only

16

take it so far before the Council term expired and

17

the next Council has to take it up and the following

18

Council has to take it up. And again, you have the

19

problem of the legislative process whereby you don't

20

have continuity because Council members change. The

21

bodies that are reviewing this change. From the

22

time we did the ag bill, I believe Councilmember

23

Nishiki and I are the only two that were there at

24

the beginning and worked it all the way through.

25

Everybody else in this Council is different. The
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discussions that we had you would not be privy to

2

unless you go back through all of those minutes, but

3

at the same time if we don't continue the process,

4

we never get anyplace.

5

So the Chair fully understands we will not

6

finish the process. At the same time, the Chair

7

will not abandon the idea of working toward a

8

solution and working toward reasonable legislation,

9

because if we ignore the process and we say, well,

10

somebody else with different mind set is going to be

11

able to work on it and complete it, they might have

12

to do review, they will have to do review. There's

13

no ifs, buts about it in my mind, but that is not an

14

excuse for not working on these policies that are

15

long term in nature. Okay.

16

Some of the legislation we do we can finish

17

in, you know, two or three meetings. Some of this

18

legislation, two or three Councils. And to this

19

point, if we're looking at these Land Use

20

ordinances, let's see, from the '60s, we're probably

21

looking at 10 Councils or more to get to this point.

22

So that is my intent, is to try and follow through

23

as best we can. The next Council will have to pick

24

it up or not pick it up. That's the decision of the

25

Land Use Chair of the next Council. Councilmember
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Johnson.

2 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I fully understand that. I
3

guess what my point would be -- because I do

4

understand all of that. What I'm hoping and what I

5

originally, I believe, transmitted was also at the

6

same time while we are in this process to not

7

aggravate an already serious problem, that -- I mean

8

that's occurring Countywide of the urbanization of

9

our agriculture land, shifting of a lot of our tax

10

dollars into providing services for areas which

11

would otherwise not have need of those services.

12

My concern is that it is going to go out

13

of -- over a long protracted period of time.

14

Therefore, that's why I introduced a moratorium at

15

the same time that I introduced this so that while

16

that process is going on, that we don't actually

17

aggravate the problem that we're already

18

experiencing. Because the same thing that happened

19

the last time when I was participating in working on

20

the ag bill as a private citizen, there was

21

everybody coming through rushing, rushing, rushing,

22

I want to get this through, I want to get that final

23

subdivision or that final approval on this

24

particular area, and those are now coming back and

25

they've come back, some of those areas. I think
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there were seven areas grandfathered.
Now we're creating another situation where

3

maybe there will be 75 to 100 grandfathered. I

4

don't want to just leave it hanging out there. I'd

5

like to try and at least have this Council take a

6

proactive measure or take some kind of interim step

7

so that we're not getting ourselves in a situation

8

that we found ourselves or you found yourselves in

9

last time where you were getting pressured from both

10

sides and then what came out was not a perfect bill.

11

I don't want to do that, but I want to be able not

12

to aggravate the problem to any greater extent. So

13

if there's anything that I could do to help move

14

that along in one direction or another, I would be

15

happy to do that, and if it is --

16 CHAIR ARAKAWA: In this Committee, Councilmember Johnson,
17

we -- and again, I agreed to this earlier, anyone

18

who wants to propose a specific piece of

19

legislation, we will bring it up in this Committee.

20

We'll schedule a meeting, we'll bring it, and we can

21

discuss it and we can try and do what we want to out

22

of this Committee, whether it be ag, rural, or open

23

space and we'll continue that on a different track.

24
25

Now, when I said that the ag bill was not
complete, don't misunderstand me and say that
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what -- the work that we did was not an improvement

2

over what we had. The ag bill that we have right

3

now was a tremendous improvement over no bill, no

4

definitions. Just the sliding scale alone was

5

bitterly contested, and to get that sliding scale

6

in -- I can tell you on a personal level, you know,

7

our property I could have subdivided into 24 lots,

8

and I'm down to eight lots. So I took a very big

9

personal sacrifice in supporting that bill, and that

10

has allowed us to be able to preserve some of the

11

larger lots. While it was not perfect, it was a lot

12

better than what we had before.

13

The idea was that we also had to evaluate

14

over time whether the bill -- where the defects in

15

the bill were and what needed to be improved on. So

16

over time we need to improve those and keep working

17

on the legislation to get it to where it is much

18

better legislation. Councilmember Kahoohalahala did

19

a tremendous amount to get the bill where it was.

20

We had tremendous public participation and we went

21

out and discussed this with many members of the

22

community. It wasn't something that came up as a

23

spur of the moment, we didn't think about it, we

24

just passed something because we didn't have

25

anything better to do. No. It was very well done
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to the point that we could do it as a legislative

2

body before the term ended.

3

And again, the next Council was responsible

4

for deciding whether they would continue that work

5

or not. The next Council did not continue that

6

work, so therefore, we left it where that Council

7

had passed it and where others -- Councilmember

8

Nishiki, for instance, submitted a second portion of

9

the ag bill that was already to the draft stage that

10

was not completed. And again, at the beginning of

11

this discussion on the ag bill I suggested that if

12

you want to work on that particular part of

13

legislation, pass it through this Committee to be

14

pushed on for adoption. We can do it in segments.

15

The total package will not be done this term.

16

I will reiterate that. Nor is it physically

17

possible -- by the process that we're required to

18

have, is it going to be done, but some of this that

19

we're -- again, we're working multiple bills,

20

because as long as we're going out and talking to

21

the public, you know, why not combine the ability

22

when we're talking to the public to discuss several

23

things, instead of just one. We could have just

24

done the open space and left everything back. We

25

could have just done rural and left everything else
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back or ag and left everything else back.
I'm combining them to maximize our exposure

3

to the public to be able to have maximum discussions

4

on several layers so that we utilize staff time and

5

Administration time more efficiently, and at the

6

same time when we start discussing this bill that we

7

were just talking about or the zero-lot line, you

8

know, if we're going to be going out to public, then

9

I'll ask this Committee to consider combining that

10

as well into the discussion so when we're scheduling

11

community meetings, we maximize our benefit of time

12

within the community. Otherwise, we truly, you

13

know, are using our resources, shall we say,

14

inefficiently. Okay. That's the purpose of what

15

we're doing.

16

So I will entertain as Chair, if you give me

17

specific legislation you want to work on for any of

18

the proposals, I will bring it up before this

19

Committee for discussion, and if we can pass it, we

20

pass it, then we'll see where it goes while we're

21

doing the other discussion.

22 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and then
23

what I would do, then, is I do have some specific

24

recommendations from the various communities based

25

on your already having gone to those communities.
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So I'm getting feedback and we will try and submit

2

something so that you can then move on in the

3

process and take that up for whatever hearings, but

4

I'd be happy to do that. Thank you.

5 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Councilmember Nishiki.
6 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And I appreciate you being
7

real clear on some of the abilities in which we

8

would have as individual Council persons to try to

9

get passed if there is enough votes during this

10

Council term. And I want to get back to a specific

11

concern that I think in passing the last agriculture

12

bill it was a policy decision left amongst Council

13

members, and I think the vote was real close. I

14

think it was like 5-4, if not 6-3. And what I want

15

to share with my fellow Council members is the

16

policy decision on this bill whereby we knew that

17

the general public was being left out. There was no

18

public hearing process on this, Mr. Chairman.

19 CHAIR ARAKAWA: For the large lots.
20 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, on the large lots, and that
21

is what is occurring right now. The Administration,

22

because of the way that the ordinance is written,

23

can pass these large lot subdivisions without any

24

public hearing or any approval from the legislative

25

branch. And so it is pretty well clear sailing for
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the concerns that have been raised throughout this

2

community, be it Molokai, Lanai, or Maui island,

3

that there is no public hearing process. And I

4

think that that is a necessary tool that we need to

5

exercise within County government.

6

Right now these subdivisions are being

7

approved. Nobody from any community can go and

8

testify on these subdivisions that are coming before

9

us -- not before us, not even coming before us. And

10

therefore, I would hope that this Council will take

11

at least that step in looking at the ordinance.

12

Because it has been discussed, Mr. Chairman, when we

13

had the last agriculture bill and it lost, but I

14

think now that we see its shortcomings, its

15

failures, its loopholes and each community has no

16

ability to address what's coming into their

17

community, I would hope, Mr. Chairman, that you

18

would look and the fellow Council members would look

19

at at least looking at this public hearing process

20

that we can afford to each community on a

21

development, and finally, if necessary, having these

22

large lot subdivisions perhaps being approved by the

23

Council. So I would hope that that would be one

24

area that we can look at before our turns are up.

25 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. And Councilmember Nishiki, the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

127

LU 9/16/02

1

language is -- you've already submitted that.

2 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
3 CHAIR ARAKAWA: So what I will commit to is our next Land
4

Use meeting, I will put that on the agenda for

5

discussion.

6 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
7 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Tavares.
8 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You know, Mr. Chairman, I think it
9

would be helpful, for me especially, if we have the

10

current ordinance outlined and proposed changes

11

noted next to them, so if we ran a two column kind

12

of a worksheet, so to speak, that as members have

13

proposals to change various sections, that that can

14

be easily noted, we can all follow along together,

15

and I would be particularly interested in what your

16

staff -- staff's analysis is of our ag bill in light

17

of the Hokulea subdivision on the Big Island's court

18

appearance and injunction. And I think that if we

19

are to look at our ag bill to see that it is -- is

20

it or isn't it in compliance with what the State

21

land use laws are regarding use of agricultural

22

lands and, you know, have some of those revisions

23

proposed by your staff as they do that analysis, and

24

I think Mr. Raatz in particular, because of his

25

legal background, would be much better able to
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suggest or recommend to us items for revision in the

2

ag bill. So I think for the next meeting that

3

would -- you know, that would be a way that we could

4

at least get started in the right direction or get

5

started in a direction. Even if we don't finish it

6

all, at least we'll have something to work with

7

throughout this term and hopefully there are numbers

8

of us that will be returning to carry it through in

9

the next term.

10 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. We'll do the best we can.
11 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
12 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I can't guarantee that we'll have the
13

specific one ready by the next meeting. It depends

14

on how our research goes. Councilmember Nishiki's

15

proposal is already there, so it's something I know

16

we can work with, but we'll do the best we can to

17

get it ready for the next meeting. Okay. Any

18

further discussion?

19

Again, what is your pleasure? You know, I

20

want to continue doing this and going out to the

21

community and being able to get input on these, just

22

continue the process as far as I can get it. Now,

23

Councilmember Johnson has been getting feedback. I

24

know I've been getting some feedback. The intent of

25

the first round was not to get feedback, but rather
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1

just give out information, and I would like to go

2

back and try and get some of that feedback. If the

3

Council -- and again, it really depends on this

4

Committee, whether you all would like to go to each

5

of these meetings or not. I think that -- my

6

personal feeling is if we try to get all nine

7

members to each one of these meetings, it will be

8

very difficult at best, considering the time of the

9

year and considering the scheduling challenges. So

10

I would ask that I be allowed to go back and

11

continue, similar to what we did the first time, and

12

bring back that information and we can start working

13

on it as a group. Any objections or any discussion?

14

Councilmember Kane.

15 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just
16

wanted to note for the record that there was a

17

communication sent to you as the Chair from

18

myself --

19 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
20 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- as the acting Chair regarding the
21

assessment of community meetings on open space, ag,

22

and rural zoning. I believe it's the final document

23

in your folders. So the question was asked to you,

24

Mr. Chair, regarding the -- I mean I know you've

25

just mentioned that you'd like to continue, but I'd
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like to point out that within the document it

2

doesn't appear likely that the meeting will result

3

in proposed legislation before the term unless

4

otherwise you've stated that -- Member Johnson

5

stated that she may come up with something and that

6

there's already something there from Member Nishiki.

7

It seems that the amount of work that is

8

going into this without, I guess, a meaningful

9

outcome other than -- I don't know if Member Johnson

10

is proposing a moratorium. As us looking at -- you

11

know, I don't know, Mr. Chairman. It seems like you

12

haven't -- in my mind, you haven't justified

13

continuing this process of going out into the

14

community in its present state with not allowing all

15

the members to participate and just having yourself

16

and one other member from the various communities

17

participate. It just -- it doesn't seem -- along

18

with the resources, because -- because of its

19

informalness, the analysts are placed with the

20

double job of doing the summary minutes as well as

21

the analyst position. So our resources for these

22

community meetings are stretched rather thin.

23

And so I bring this up, I put it on record,

24

and hopefully, you know, you can take those things

25

into consideration before asking for proceeding on
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this. And if you have some sort of response to

2

that, I would appreciate it.

3 CHAIR ARAKAWA: I thought that I had kind of clarified
4

what you're -- everything that you had asked for.

5

Quite frankly, you know, the reason that I'm

6

combining three different topic areas is to preserve

7

resources. The reason that we're continuing and I

8

would like to continue this is because this will

9

take several Councils to be able to complete. I

10

don't believe that abandoning it and trying to leave

11

it for someone who may or may not have dealt with it

12

before is going to do us any good, and starting it

13

next term, we'll still have the same problem.

14

The open space bill has a possibility of

15

actually coming through to completion this term. So

16

that in and of itself I believe would merit going to

17

the communities and having the discussion to be able

18

to bring back. The option as to whether or not the

19

full Committee should go on these community meetings

20

or not, that is what I'm leaving to you. If you all

21

would choose to go out as full Committee, understand

22

that there is a cost involved to it. It would be

23

looking at, at least for Lanai, Molokai, and

24

possibly Hana, paying for airline flights as well as

25

full staff. By doing it as an individual Chair of
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the Committee in an informal meeting, I believe we

2

save on our resources.
Someone is going to have to do the work.

3
4

Whether it is done in this Council or this Committee

5

or whether it's done in the next term, we still are

6

going to involve staff time, and all the work that

7

we do we involve staff time. It's just a question

8

of where we're going to channel that effort. So

9

in -- I believe that answers my feeling on all the

10

questions that you asked, but it's up to this

11

Committee. If you choose to not do any of this work

12

and you feel that we're not going to get anything

13

accomplished about it, it relieves the Chair of a

14

lot of responsibility, but the Committee needs to

15

answer to the public why this work isn't being done.

16

Now, I know that the Mayor has been going

17

around in his public addresses and saying, well,

18

it's up to the Council to finish the open space

19

bill. You know, we sent it down, it's up to you to

20

work on it, and I'm attempting to do that work. So

21

if the Committee feels that we should not do this

22

work, I will tell you as the Chair that I want to

23

complete doing the work and I believe it is

24

conceivable that we can get at least that done this

25

term.
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I'm combining the others in order to be more

1
2

efficient. We didn't have to do that, but if I'm

3

going to go to the trouble of going to the public,

4

getting them to the meetings, I want to be able to

5

combine all these different aspects of what we need

6

to work with to make it more efficient, rather than

7

just one item at a time. So that is where I'm at.

8

I hope I'm answering your questions as to what the

9

Committee Chair feels about this. Councilmember

10

Kane.

11 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And, you
12

know, again, I put this forward because, quite

13

frankly, with your earlier comments about passing

14

the original ag bill with the expectation that a

15

future Council -- and I'm going to put it in my

16

words, because I don't know how else to put it, to

17

clean up the flaws or the apparent flaws of the

18

bill, quite frankly, I think was irresponsible. I

19

think passing a bill without doing the due diligence

20

and doing the work that was necessary to prevent all

21

these perceived flaws just shows that, you know,

22

this whole thing with trying to get it done for the

23

sake of getting done -- and again, with all due

24

respect, Mr. Chairman, your comments that it was

25

much better -- it's much better that we have this
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bill versus not having a bill, provide me with

2

something that would validate that comment,

3

Mr. Chair.

4

I mean not here in verbal, but I'm talking

5

about something in writing that validates that if

6

this ag bill is in fact what you say it is, then I

7

want some hard numbers to show, because I can tell

8

you quite frankly this ag bill created a lot of the

9

problems that we have today that -- I don't know,

10

if -- otherwise, if this thing wasn't pursued in the

11

first place, we would be in the same problem, and

12

maybe we'll never know.

13

But you've made some strong comments, and

14

respectfully I disagree with some of the comments

15

that you've made, and again, respectfully, and I

16

want to make sure that from a personal standpoint,

17

and personal meaning as an individual member, as a

18

representative of this body, I don't think it is

19

appropriate to pass on piecemeal legislation for

20

some future -- with the expectation that some future

21

body be responsible for correcting it or adjusting

22

it or tweaking it to make it better.

23

I think if we're going to pass legislation,

24

let's do it the right way. Let's take the time to

25

do it. If it takes a long time, so it be it, but

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

135

LU 9/16/02

1

once it's done, it's going to be hopefully a lot

2

better than us rushing through it just to get it

3

done for the sake of getting it done, excuse me,

4

getting it done.

5

So, again, Mr. Chair, you know, I'm just

6

sharing my two cents on this. I kind of feel

7

strongly that this whole thing with the ag bill was

8

done -- it wasn't done the right way in hindsight.

9

And again, with all due respect, I know you and some

10

other members of this body had a role with this.

11

It's interesting to note that the members who passed

12

this bill are the very ones now who are saying that

13

we need to correct it, and so --

14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, Councilmember Kane, I'm not going
15

to disagree with you. You're entitled to your

16

opinion.

17 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
18 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And in clarification, what I said was we
19

took it to the point we could. We knew that there

20

needed to be more work done on it, and we passed out

21

what we could, expecting that the next Council and

22

the following Councils would continue to work on it.

23

Because it was not -- the work was not continued, I

24

believe some of the legislation is not where it

25

should be. I believe the sliding scale in and of
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itself was a good program that was enacted. That

2

was not there prior to the ag bill. A lot of the

3

definitions on the ag bill, a lot of the

4

requirements or things that are prohibited in

5

agriculture are also in that ag bill. So there's a

6

lot of substance to the bill that exists currently.

7

None of that was there.

8
9

In looking at pieces of legislation, every
time we make a decision, whether it be the budget,

10

whether it be a policy -- you know, this is the

11

reason we have many Councils. You know, Councils

12

come and Councils go. The people that are there

13

making the decisions at the time have to be able to

14

improve on what was left behind. Our circumstances

15

change, and what is occurring in each generation of

16

Councils is different. So we always have to be able

17

to be flexible and to be able to work with

18

legislation that is there, to work and hone

19

improvements into it.

20

When we were working on the ag bill, the

21

intent was to start and to be able to get to a

22

point. If we had been able to complete it where it

23

was totally perfect for the time we passed it, we

24

would still have had to re-hone it as the community

25

changes, just like the community plan. You know, we
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pass a community plan. We don't pass a perfect

2

document. We pass a document that needs to be

3

revisited, and quite specifically I know that we

4

have stated in community plans this is not the end

5

all of the document. It needs to be revisited by

6

future communities.

7

That is the way we looked at the ag bill and

8

that's the way I look at legislation. As Chair of

9

the Committee, I will do the work that I can during

10

my term and when I have control of it what we're

11

working with to the best of my ability. Anything

12

that we pass as legislators, a new Council,

13

different people may have totally different

14

opinions, and we just take those snapshots in time

15

and do the best we can with them. And if there be

16

errors in it, so be it. We're all human. There are

17

none of us that are infallible and there are none of

18

us that have perfect decision making.

19

So I leave it at that. We did the best we

20

could with the ag bill. If you feel that it is

21

imperfect, we've already acknowledge that had it was

22

imperfect, and I'll continue to work on what we

23

have. At this point, you know, I have left it to

24

the Committee, where do you want to proceed from

25

here, and that's where I'm going to leave it with
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the explanation.

2 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can I just make a clarification,
3

because you represented something I want you to be

4

clear on something. What I'm objecting to is that

5

you made a comment earlier that the ag bill was done

6

with the expectation that the future Council -- in

7

other words, in your comments you held the future

8

Council responsible for the flaws of that ag bill,

9

and that's why I brought that point forward to say

10

that that wasn't fair of you to say something like

11

that. If you're going to have flaws, then you

12

should have took care of those flaws prior to

13

passing it. And you said -- you said that the next

14

Council didn't take it up, and therefore, it was the

15

next Council's fault for not dealing with the

16

problems or the flaws that were in that bill. So I

17

want to keep the context of, you know, my comments,

18

you know, clear, that that was the only thing that I

19

was trying to reference with respect to those

20

comments that you made, Mr. Chair.

21 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And let me make it perfectly clear so
22

we're not have any disagreement as to what I'm

23

insinuating or saying. Our Council -- the Council

24

that worked on the ag bill did the best we could to

25

take it to the point we did. We expected future
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1

Councils to take that where we left it and be able

2

to work on it to improve it. Okay. It was not that

3

we left -- deliberately left flaws for the next

4

Council to fix. We knew it was not a perfect bill.

5

We expected other Councils following us to take the

6

work that we had to that point and improve on it.

7

Okay.

8 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
9 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares.
10 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, thank you. Regarding the ag
11

bill, I think in our next discussion and before we

12

go out to any more rounds in the community, that we

13

should be -- have discussed and voted on proposals

14

for amendments to the ag bill, for example, so that

15

there's something specific that we can go back to

16

the community with in this -- in your second round.

17

The ag bill, as with many bills, you know, is not

18

perfect. At the time that the ag bill was worked

19

on, as you have pointed out, it was the best job we

20

could do at the time.

21

Given that a whole lot was riding on a few

22

little things and it did -- I think it did pass like

23

5-4, just barely passed, and in fact it wasn't going

24

to pass until the sliding scale was readjusted, but

25

there are many ordinances that are passed or amended
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and it's -- you do what you can, and I think one

2

example is on the park assessment. Park assessment

3

has been worked on for several Councils, and you

4

can't do everything all at the same time. It

5

depends on the composition and the feelings of the

6

members at the time. So if you fail -- and, you

7

know, we failed a couple things in that park

8

assessment until this Council, and this Council saw

9

fit to change some very critical issues in park

10

assessment. And it wasn't that it was never tried

11

before, it's just the will of the sitting members at

12

that time was different.

13

So the ag bill had been languishing for what,

14

30 something years, not just three years. It was

15

much longer than that. So, you know, for us to get

16

to the point where we could get agreement amongst

17

five members to pass something was a very difficult

18

process, and, you know, if we thought at that time

19

that there were like serious flaws in the bill, we

20

wouldn't have passed it, at least I wouldn't have.

21

We would have tied to correct it. But in that

22

snapshot in time it seemed to be the best that we

23

could do at that moment, and like everything else

24

that we look at, we look at different bills and say

25

does it need to be updated for our current
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situation, just like community plans, like you

2

mentioned.

3

So I think that, you know, we have to

4

continue working on this, and once again, I suggest,

5

Mr. Chair, that you have a revision or proposed

6

revisions to the ag bill to go out specifically so

7

that the community will know specifically what to

8

talk about, what their opinions should be based on.

9 CHAIR ARAKAWA: The one problem I have with that,
10

Councilmember Tavares, is in this first round we

11

just passed out information. We didn't ask for

12

input. So I don't have that input part, and what I

13

do need to do, I believe, is to go out to the

14

community and get some input back to be able to work

15

on the bill. Otherwise, I passed out information

16

and we as a Committee will decide or a few of us

17

will decide what we want to add to that, but I

18

really don't have the community input part of that

19

package yet.

20

A second round would allow me to get some

21

input, then I could construct something listing what

22

was recommended. And again, that was the agreement

23

we made in Committee, that I would not go out there

24

and solicit input, but rather I would disseminate

25

information on the first round. So I'm kind of
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caught between a rock and a hard place. I'd really

2

like to do what you're saying, but I would be

3

cutting the community out. So that's why I'm asking

4

for this second round to be able to get some input

5

back, and working from that we can bring it to

6

Committee and start crafting.

7 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, maybe you can kill two birds
8

with one stone. Have some things out there, so at

9

least there's a start of conversation there and get

10

input from the community on that and other things.

11

I think taking it out cold you're putting yourself

12

at a disadvantage.

13 CHAIR ARAKAWA: We did give out -- we did give out the
14

documentation, the rural bill, the ag bill to where

15

it was and the open space bill, so we did take

16

information out. What I'm talking about is -- you

17

know, it wasn't out cold where we didn't have

18

anything to get there, but what it is is the input

19

coming back now that we've given them those bills

20

and the explanation. I don't have that input.

21 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
22 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So that's really what I was looking
23

for in this second round, is to just get that input

24

back. Councilmember Hokama.

25 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Again, each
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district is a little different, Chairman, as we are

2

all well aware of. I would ask that -- I can

3

support Charmaine -- Ms. Tavares on the ag bill,

4

because for Lanai, Chairman, we're all well aware of

5

that we haven't had to deal with agricultural

6

subdivisions. The landowner hasn't come forward to

7

subdivide agricultural lands. West Maui has brought

8

up concerns to all of us, as well as some concerns

9

regarding ag use subdivisions proposed in the

10

Wailuku/Central Maui area. So those communities

11

have a little bit of a more vested interest, if I

12

could put it in those words, Chairman, because these

13

things are going through a process right now.

14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
15 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And they would have comments on
16

exactly what we're talking about. Lanai would have

17

a better opportunity to give comment on something

18

that is proposed, this is what is and this is what

19

we're looking at to address some of the things

20

happening elsewhere in the County. And so I would

21

say that would work for us on Lanai.

22

Under your open space, Chairman, I would ask

23

that we really consider start taking the whole

24

Committee out to the district, because I believe we

25

are in a situation or a state of process whereby
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this proposed ordinance, I believe, is worthy of the

2

full Committee's participation in the districts.

3

And for whatever reason, there's a lot more public

4

participation attendance when the full Committee

5

goes out to those districts. So I would ask for you

6

to please consider that, please. Thank you.

7 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And again, you know, I have no problem at
8

all with bringing the full Committee out. It's just

9

that at this time of year when I start scheduling,

10

remember this is -- there's a lot of districts to

11

cover and the meetings will be fast and furious. So

12

everyone is going to have to clear their schedules

13

to be able to make all of these meetings. That was

14

the major concern I had in trying to schedule where

15

all the Committee members would be there. I would

16

prefer to have all the Committee members there.

17 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I understand, Chairman, and yet the
18

people are aware of and I'm sure we're very aware of

19

our obligations to perform the people's work.

20 CHAIR ARAKAWA: To me, I'm going to have to be there as
21

the Chair. I have to be there anyway. What I was

22

going to take into consideration was the rest of you

23

trying to put together a schedule whereby we have at

24

least enough members to have a quorum to be able to

25

have a community meeting. If all of you want to go
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out and I can get that commitment from you, we'll be

2

glad to schedule all the Council members there,

3

because I really think that that's the better avenue

4

to be able to do this. It's just that I was -- I

5

have some concerns as to making quorums after we

6

schedule meetings.
So if I -- perhaps a show of hands how many

7
8

of you would like to have these meetings with all of

9

the Council members versus how many of you would

10

like us to do it the same way that we're doing it

11

right now, or any other permeation that you may come

12

up with, I'd be glad to entertain any suggestions at

13

this point. Councilmember Kane.

14 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, Mr. Chair, just for
15

clarification. Are you entertaining Mr. Hokama's

16

proposal that is concurrent with Ms. Tavares'

17

proposal, the open space one is what we go out all

18

together but for the ag one we don't go out until we

19

have -- or we do the both, that we go out with some

20

of the proposals that we may already have or can

21

come up with by the next meeting but still allow

22

some input for massaging, so to speak, on that ag

23

bill?

24 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Basically what I'm thinking about is I'll
25

just -- we'll just put all three items on. If there
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are proposals that we come up with, we can take

2

those out and we can receive proposals from the

3

community at the same time and suggestions at the

4

same time. As long as I'm bringing the Committee

5

out to the various communities, the more topics that

6

we can get input on, I believe the better off we are

7

and will conserve a lot of, you know, our resources,

8

rather than trying to do them one at a time. If I'm

9

going to go to Lanai, for instance, for open space

10

and I'm only talking about open space, I bring the

11

full Committee out, if we can have discussion on

12

rural and agriculture, if there's anybody that wants

13

to discuss it, then I think it would be to our

14

advantage to have that discussion.

15

So what I would propose is looking at the

16

things that we want to as far as the rural, open

17

space, and ag, and if we can get the zero-lot line

18

discussion down firm before we go out to the

19

community, maybe even combining that, and basically

20

what I've tried to do is whatever we can have in the

21

community -- whatever is before this Committee in

22

the community, I'm trying to combine it to get the

23

maximum benefit, as long as we have the full

24

Committee out there. Yes, Councilmember Kane.

25 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Then I will be blunt in saying that I
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think that just for this Committee, with the

2

understanding that many of us have other committees

3

and other important issues on the table, that I

4

believe that if you're asking us to take on all four

5

of these issues prior to the end of the term, that I

6

personally think that it's not achievable. And I'm

7

not willing to make that commitment to be able to

8

participate in a meaningful manner on all four of

9

these very important items, and I think it's just

10

too much for you to ask of us or ask of me as a

11

member of your Committee.

12 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Again, all I'm suggesting is that
13

when we go out to the communities, we're going to be

14

receiving information. It's not to conclude or to

15

come up with a final bill on a lot of these areas.

16

So if the Committee chooses just to take one of

17

these and go to the communities and you don't want

18

to hear about any of the others, that's fine too. I

19

just think it's a waste of time. As long as we're

20

in the community, I'd like to see as much

21

accomplished as we possibly can, and talking to the

22

community I don't believe hurts us in any of these.

23

We're not going to finish the ag bill and the rural

24

bill this term, but the ability to go out and ask

25

the community and have them give us input, as long
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1

as we're there anyway and we're paying the plane

2

fare over to the different communities and we're

3

paying for staff to be there, the Chair would prefer

4

to combine, just for the sake of receiving

5

information or discussing it. Councilmember

6

Johnson.

7 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just for your information, too.
8

On April 26, 2002 I did send forward a draft bill

9

for the moratorium, and that's on the ag

10

subdivision. It was a bill for an ordinance

11

amending Title 18 of the Maui County Code pertaining

12

to subdivisions, and it was Chapter 18.51, temporary

13

moratorium on agricultural subdivisions, and it was

14

for the reasons that I earlier, you know, had spoken

15

about. So I just wanted to clarify that that was

16

already sent forward.

17 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. And again, if you want that, when
18

we have the ag -- when we have the discussion in the

19

next meeting, we can put that on the agenda as well.

20 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I really appreciate that.
21

Thank you.

22 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other feelings or -- Councilmember
23

Tavares.

24 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I have no
25

problem with you going out, as you did on the first
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round, and if you want to specifically cover, you

2

know, the four areas. I think that input -- now

3

that you're going to ask for input on them and if

4

you can take anything that we have discussed here to

5

those members in the community to share with them, I

6

don't have a problem with that. I will definitely,

7

you know, make the meeting that you have in my area.

8 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other discussions or feel,
9

because this concerns all of you? If I schedule a

10

Committee meeting, then I would anticipate that all

11

nine members would be there. If it's going to be

12

just myself in an informal meeting, then it would be

13

myself and whoever happens to be in that district I

14

would ask first. Councilmember Mateo.

15 COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chair, thank you. I agree with
16

Member Tavares. From the first round it was -- I

17

had assumed that that -- this would have been the

18

process that would have occurred next, you going

19

back to actually discuss and come back with tangible

20

information and recommendations from the community.

21

So I will be -- I will make myself available for

22

meetings in my community and I would like to have

23

the Chairman go to the various communities, instead

24

of the whole body, Committee.

25 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Why don't I go right down the line.
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1

Councilmember Kane? No comment. Councilmember

2

Carroll?

3 COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. If we're going
4

to do it like that to where it would just be me and

5

you in East Maui for that one meeting, yes. To go

6

to all the districts, I think that would be a little

7

burdensome, but for that one, yes.

8 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Hokama.
9 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I've stated my position, Chairman.
10

Thank you.

11 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Johnson.
12 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I have no problem with you
13

continuing, because we've already been getting some

14

feedback and I'll transmit at least what I've been

15

gathering and I'll try and put that in the form of

16

some kind of communication.

17 CHAIR ARAKAWA: So you would prefer myself and whoever is
18

in the district or --

19 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think it's easier just for ease
20

of administration until we have something concrete

21

to really take out as a body. So I think that's the

22

best way to do it under the circumstances. I think

23

it's more efficient.

24 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Councilmember Molina.
25 COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. I'll
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1

put it real simply. You might as well finish what

2

was started, so to deviate now and do something

3

totally different from the original procedure that

4

you had, just go about and proceed with what you had

5

originally planned. So I have no problem with that.

6 CHAIR ARAKAWA: So the Chair and the Committee member in
7

that area?

8 COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
9 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Councilmember Nishiki.
10 COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I think it's a good
11

compromise, because I hear that scheduling is going

12

to be a problem. So what you are now embarking on I

13

will support.

14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Then I believe we have
15

consensus that -- I should say we have a majority

16

that feels that we should do this same way. So the

17

Chair will proceed. The Chair will schedule

18

meetings in each of the districts and I will have

19

the representative of that district be at that

20

meeting. Okay. And then following that I

21

anticipate we will have a Committee meeting with the

22

input that we had in the communities, and we'll

23

discuss that. And if we have time to go out for a

24

third meeting, then we'll go out as a Committee,

25

because then we'll have something that we can really
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1

discuss within the communities. Okay.

2 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
3 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.
4 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One last comment. On the open
5

space, the Planning Commissions have conducted their

6

public hearings and community meeting regarding this

7

proposal, and so this is in a totally different

8

status compared to the revisions that you would --

9

that we as a Committee would like to look at

10

regarding the ag bill or the rural zoning bill,

11

Chairman. And I would hope we would still look at

12

the open space proposal in a different light,

13

Chairman, because I believe it deserves the

14

Committee's attention. Thank you.

15 CHAIR ARAKAWA: In dealing with the open space ordinance,
16

we can bring it to Committee and we can discuss it

17

as a Committee. It has been the policy on the

18

Councils that I have for us to go out and get input

19

from the community on whatever bills we're working

20

with. Now, the way we used to do it was there would

21

be a proposal and the Committee would work on it and

22

then we would go out and have the Planning

23

Commissions look at it and have community meetings.

24
25

This Administration has chosen to do that
backwards this time, whereby they're going out and
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1

they're trying to solicit input before the Council

2

has a chance to really look at the bills. Okay. So

3

we would not have had the ability to talk to the

4

community about what is happening within those

5

bills, and I felt that -- you know, and I still feel

6

that we as a Committee also need to have the input,

7

rather than just what is coming up as proposed. So

8

that's why I'm talking this stance.

9

We can, if you choose, if this Committee

10

wants to, we can ignore the public input to our

11

Committee and assume that what is being told to

12

us -- that's given to us from the Planning

13

Commission, their public hearings, and the

14

Administration is adequate. Now, they've actually

15

done that. So if we want to assume that that is

16

adequate and we as a Council do not want to go out

17

and solicit public information for our decision

18

making, that is a policy that we could do.

19 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, what I'm asking is the
20

Committee go back to the districts because the

21

commissions have done their review of the open space

22

proposal, and I make a strong point because for

23

Lanai, Chairman, from 1993 when the CAC had

24

recommended open space category for our community

25

plan, we are still waiting for a zoning category,
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1

because a lot of acreages on the island of Lanai

2

comes under open space, and though it's only fair to

3

the community as well as the landowner to know what

4

will be permitted and not permitted under open space

5

classification, Chairman. And so I just share that

6

because, again, we have heard the frustration that

7

once we pass the community plans, we keep waiting

8

for implementation action and this, for Lanai, is an

9

important implementation action, Chairman. Thank

10

you.

11 CHAIR ARAKAWA: And I'm not going to disagree with that,
12

but understand that when we went out there and we

13

were discussing the open space ordinance on Lanai,

14

we had three attendees. Okay. So in trying to get

15

the public aware --

16 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And again, Chairman -17 CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- we were passing out information.
18 COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Prior to that we had a Committee
19

meeting and we had better attendance, and that's why

20

I say maybe the Committee's presence there as a

21

formal group and official meeting tends to bring out

22

more people than in the informal setting, Chairman.

23

So I just share that, because you and I sat through

24

that evening together, Chairman.

25 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right, and I know that. Okay. Anyhow,
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1

the Committee has decided how we're going to do

2

this, and if there are -- are there any further

3

areas you wish to discuss or make announcements? If

4

not, I'm going to adjourn the meeting.

5 COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And defer the rest?
6 CHAIR ARAKAWA: That -- we already deferred what we need
7

to defer. These items, we will just defer these

8

items because we're done with this.

9 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, I'm sorry, just for
10

clarification.

11 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
12 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Are you asking for no objections to
13

deferring Items 5 and 19?

14 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, at this point I was just going to
15

defer it, rather than asking for it, because we've

16

already had discussions, so...

17 COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
18 CHAIR ARAKAWA: If there's no objections, we -- I'll ask
19

for deferral.

20 COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
21 CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. If no other announcements, this
22

meeting is adjourned. (Gavel).

23

ACTION:

DEFER.

24 ADJOURNED: 5:25 p.m.
25
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